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Mr. K Kumar has rich experience of over 40 years. 
Mr. K Kumar was former MD & CEO, Indian Clearing 
Corporation Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of BSE 
Ltd). He has previously worked with NSE, United 
Stock Exchange of ·1ndia Limited and was also part of 
companies like Aloula Geojit Capital (at Riyadh), BNA 
Technology Consulting, Credit Suisse First Boston 
(India) Securities, Cazenave, OTC Exchange of India 
(OTCEI), Orix Auto & Business Solutions. He was 
also part of the 6 Member Core Team which had set 
up NSE. He has also worked in SBI and IDBI. He has 
exhaustive knowledge of Membership, Inspection, 
Compliance, Regulatory, Trading, Clearing & 
Settlement systems and processes of Stock 
Exchange and· Clearing Corporation. 

Mr. Kapil Seth has an experience of over 24 years 
across leadership roles in a top tier global bank. He 
has led regional transaction banking business of 
Securities Services across Middle East, North Africa 
and Turkey and previously for India. He has held 
Membership of the Global Securities Services 
Executive Committee and Regional Leadership team 
of HSBC Global Banking and Markets. He also has a 
significant experience of over 20 years across 
Corporate and institutional banking coverage in 
India and is currently an independent consultant. 

Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem joined IIT, Hyderabad 
faculty in December 2000 and headed the Data 
Science and Analytics Center and Agents and 
Applied Robotics Group. He held the leadership 
position of Dean (Academics) at IIIT, Hyderabad, and 
IIIT, Sri City. He is a professor and an applied 
computer scientist with broad research interests, 
from conceptual modeling workflow systems to 
distributed database systems and performance, from 
clustering and classification algorithms in data 
mining to information extraction from actionable 
texts, from high dimensional intensive data 
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visualization to visual query exploration, and from 
multi-agent systems based simulation to 
multirobotic solutions. He has graduated ten Ph.D. 
and over fifty Masters by Research students. He, with 
his students, has participated in various academic 
challenges and competitions like RoboCup, TAC 
SCM, VAST, and CLEF and have secured top three 
positions in them. He is an alumnus of Indian 
Statistical Institute (M.Stat), IIT, Kharagpur (M.Tech), 
and Georgia Tech (Ph.D., 1992) and was a faculty 
member in the computer science department at 
HKUST (1992-2000) before joining IIIT Hyderabad. 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal is a business leader with three 
decades of experience in financial services industry 
including Credit Rating, Mutual funds Research, 
Equity Research, Fixed Income Research, Industry 
Research & Indices. Mukesh has been part of various 
regulatory committees/Sub-committees in India on 
topics related to Indices, Bond Markets, Mutual 
Funds, Passive funds etc. 

Mr. Agarwal is presently the Managing Director of 
NSE Indices Ltd. And NSE Data & Analytics Ltd., 
wholly owned subsidiaries of National Stock 
Exchange of India (NSE), India's largest stock 
exchange. 

Previously, Mr. Agarwal was President at CRISIL 
Limited, a Standard & Poor's company, and was 
leading their India Research business with full P&L 
responsibility. He worked with CRISIL for 20 years in 
various functions including Credit Ratings for 15 
years. Mukesh has a Masters Degree in Management 
studies from S.P. Jain Institute of Management & 
Research, Mumbai, India and Bachelors Degree in 
Electrical & Electronics Engineering from Birla 
Institute of Technology & Science (BITS), Pilani, 
Rajasthan, India. 
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in 1988. He joined NSE in 1995 and was responsible 
for setting up Equity and Derivatives Trading and 
Clearing. He was heading the index and data 
company of NSE. He joined Morgan Stanley India in 
2005 as Executive Director Operations. He joined 
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Mr. Neeraj Kulshrestha (MD & CEO) 

Ms. Hemal Davda (Chief Financial Officer) 
Mr. Arjav Trivedi (Company Secretary) 
Mr. Vivek Singhvi (Chief Risk & Regulatory Officer 
and Compliance Officer) 
Mr. Sushil Limbulkar (Chief Technology Officer) 
Mr. Gaurang Thakkar (Chief Information Security 
Officer) 
Mr. Saroj Nanda (Head - Clearing & Settlement) 
Mr. Sharad Sharma (Head - Risk Management) 
Mr. Amit Prabhu (Senior Manager - ADM) 

M/s. K.S. Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
F-7, Laxmi Mills Shakti Mills Lane, Off, Dr Elijah 
Moses Rd, Mahalakshmi, Mumbai, Maharashtra -
400011 

Link lntime India Private Limited 
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 083 

Unit-1202, Brigade International Financial 
Centre,12th Floor, Block-14, Road 1c, Zone-1, GIFT 
SEZ, GIFT City, Gandhinagar Gujarat - 382355 

4 



NSE 
International 
Clearing 

Dear Members: 

BOARD'S REPORT 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 8th Annual Report and the Audited 
Financial Statements of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited (the 'Company or 
NICCL') for the financial year ending March 31, 2024. 

NICCL was incorporated as a public company on December 2, 2016, in Gandhinagar 
under the Companies Act, 2013. NICCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of NSE Clearing 
Limited (NCL - a wholly owned subsidiary of NSE). The Company has been incorporated 
to set up and operate a Clearing Corporation as a unit in an International Financial Service 
Centre in any SEZ as approved by the Government of India under the relevant statute or 
anywhere globally to provide clearing and settlement of any kind, including physical and 
cash settlement of securities. 

NICCL commenced its operations as a Clearing Corporation in GIFT International 
Financial Services Centre (GIFT IFSC), Gandhinagar, Gujarat, India, with effect from 
June 05, 2017, after receiving approval from SEBI. IFSC Authority (IFSCA) granted 
recognition to NICCL on May 24, 2021 , which was subsequently renewed every year. 
The current renewal is valid till May 28, 2024, and an application has been made to IFSCA 
for further renewal. 

NICCL clears and settles trades executed on NSE IFSC Ltd, a subsidiary of NSE. NICCL 
has formulated Rules, Regulations, and Byelaws that are consistent with the Principles 
for Financial Market Infrastructures (PFMls) issued by the Committee on Payment and 
Settlement Systems (CPSS) and the International Organisation of Securities 
Commissions (IOSCO). The Rules and Byelaws have been approved by the Regulator, 
IFSCA. NICCL has put in place a robust and comprehensive Risk Management System. 

NICCL offers the following types of clearing memberships - Professional Clearing 
Member (PCM), Trading Cum Clearing Member (TMCM) and Trading Cum Self Clearing 
Member (TMSCM). 

The various asset classes that are cleared and settled by NICCL are: 
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Category Instrument Type 

Equity Index Futures 

Equity Index Options 

Single Stock Futures & 
Derivatives Options 
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Key Features 
o Trading Hours: 
Session-1 
Pre-open Open Time: 6:15 Hrs 
Pre-open Close Time: 6:25 Hrs 
Normal Market Open Time: 6:30 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 15:40 Hrs 
Pre-Close Open Time: 15:45 Hrs 
Pre-Close Close Time: 15:50 Hrs 
Pre-Close End Time: 15:55 Hrs 
Session-2 
Pre-open Open Time: 16:25 Hrs 
Pre-open Close Time: 16:31 Hrs 
Normal Market Open Time: 16:35 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 02:45 Hrs 
(Next Day) 
o Currency of Trade: US Dollars 
o Contract Calendar: 
Weekly, Monthly, Quarterly expiries 
o Margining: SPAN-Based 
o Settlement: Cash Settled 
o Daily Settlement: T +1 Day 

o Trading Hours: 
Session-1 
Normal Market Open Time: 6:30 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 15:40 Hrs 
Session-2 
Normal Market Open Time: 16:35 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 2:45 Hrs 
(Next Day) 
o Currency of Trade: US Dollars 
o Contract Calendar: 
Weekly, Monthly, Quarterly expiries 
0 Margining: SPAN Based 
0 Settlement: Cash Settled 
o Daily Settlement: T +1 Day 
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Category Instrument Type 

Currency Futures & 
Derivatives Options 

Depostiory 
EQTYDR 

Receipt 

NSEIFSC 
USAIDR 

Receipt 

Key Features 
o Trading Hours: 
Session-1 
Normal Market Open Time: 6:30 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 17:00 Hrs 
Session-2 
Normal Market Open Time: 17:30 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 02:45 Hrs 
(Next Day) 
o Currency of Trade: US Dollars 
o Contract Calendar: 
Weekly, Monthly, Quarterly expiries 
o Margining: SPAN-Based 
o Settlement: Cash Settled 
o Daily Settlement: T +1 Day 

o Trading Hours: 
Session-1 
Normal Market Open Time: 06:30 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time: 17:00 Hrs 
Session-2 
Normal Market Open Time: 17:30 Hrs 
Normal Market Close Time :02:45 Hrs 
(Next Day) 
o Currency of Trade: US Dollars 
o Trade for Trade settlement on a gr~ss 
basis 
o Daily Settlement: T +2 Day 
o Trading Hours: 19:00 - 1 :30 Hrs 
o Currency of Trade: US Dollars 
o Settlement: Delivery based 
o Daily Settlement: T +3 Day 
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Category lnstrum_ent Type Key Features 
o Trading Hours: 
Session-1 
NL T Market Open Time: 06:30 Hrs 
NL T Market Close Time: 16:55 Hrs 
Session-2 
NLT Market Open Time: 17:10 Hrs 

NSE 
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Index 
NLT Futures & 

NL T Market Close Time: 02:45 Hrs (Next 

Options 
Day) 
o Currency of Trade: US Dollars 
o Contract Calendar: 
Weekly, Monthly, Quarterly expiries 
o Margining: SPAN-Based 
o Settlement: Cash Settled 
o Daily Settlement: T +1 Day 

As on March 31, 2024, NICCL had 18 (eighteen) clearing members of which there are 9 
(nine) Trading cum Clearing Members, 7 (seven) Trading cum Self Clearing Members and 
2 (two) Professional Clearing Members. Clearing Banks and Depositories are the key link 
between clearing members and NICCL for the settlement of funds and securities. The 
Members are required to maintain and operate a clearing account with any one of the 
designated clearing banks and a pool account with a depository participants. Currently, 
there are 7 (seven) clearing banks empanelled with NICCL for issuance of collateral and 
6 (six) Banks for clearing and settlement of funds. For the settlement of securities, NICCL 
has established connectivity with India International Depository IFSC Limited (IIDL), a 
depository in IFSC and with Global CSD Clearstream. 

1. Initiatives and Major Events during FY 2023-24: 

1. Full-scale operations of NSEIX-SGX GIFT Connect commenced on July 03, 2024, 
with US $8.05 billion open interest in Nifty futures and over US $1 .04 billion open 
interest in Nifty Options. This was a first-of-its-kind high-performance financial 
corridor between Singapore and India, driving deeper liquidity for the Nifty. GIFT 
NIFTY recorded a turnover of US$ 1.21 Billion on that day, demonstrating high 
confidence from global institutional investors. Consequent upon the implementation 
of SGX connect the revenues of the Company commenced from July, 2023. 

2. CARE Rating has assigned the highest credit rating of 'CARE AAA' to NICCL. This 
rating is considered to have the highest degree of safety and carry lowest credit risk. 

3. Negotiated Large Trades (NL T) functionality was extended to all the members, w.e.f. 
August 16, 2023, which was earlier available for SGX members only. 

4. NICCL has enhanced the risk management system during the year, wherein, the 
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risk reduction mode was modified from 90% to 85% w.e.f. June 19, 2023. 
5. NICCL has started computing and disseminating daily settlement price (DSP) for

index contracts at the close of market hours.
6. An unannounced Live session from the Disaster Recovery site was successfully

carried out on January 12, 2024. All the members and external interfaces
successfully participated in the session.

7. NICCL has successfully carried out Live Clearing & Settlement, Risk Management
activities from its Disaster Recovery Site from May 1_5, 2023, till May 19, 2023, and
from October 09, 2023, till October 13, 2023.

8. To optimize and strengthen the Risk Management and Clearing platform, NICCL
has started performing, internal order/trade/risk management activities every
trading/clearing day before the start of market, as part of pre-market sanity checks,
w.e.f. June 19, 2023.

9. The computed and validated Cyber Capability Index (CCI) score for NICCL for the
quarter ending December 2023 was 95.33.

2. Operational Updates:

1. As of March 31, 2024, NICCL clears and settles derivative contracts on 4 Indices, 7
currency pairs, 182 single stocks, 1 DR Receipt and 50 NSEIFSC Receipts.

2. NICCL accepts Cash, Fixed Deposit Receipt, Bank Guarantee, and US Treasury
Securities as collateral.

3. As of March. 31, 2024, the Settlement Guarantee Fund was US $4.57 Million.
4. The total value of the settlement for FY 2023-24 was US $40.40 million, while the

highest monthly settlement in FY 2023-27 was US $6.50 million for February 2024.

The Details of Derivative transactions for the FY 2023-24 are given in the table below: 

Month No. of Turnover* Mark-To- Final Total 
Contracts (in Mn US$) Market Settlement Settlement 

Traded Settlement + including (in US$) 
Premium Exercise 

Settlement Settlement 
(in US$) (in US$) 

Apr-23 8,76,261 18,159 1,98,377 1,29, 735. 70 3,28, 112. 70 

May-23 9,85,096 18,563 6,44,819 32,371.80 6,77,190.80 

Jun-23 12,26, 149 32,097 9,37,807 91,593.60 10,29,400.60 

Jul-23 14,77,931 57,449 31,33,217 5,13,815.40 36,47,032.40 

Aug-23 17,43,468 66,919 19,03,018 34,490.90 19,37,508.90 

Sep-23 17,00,910 67,144 23,35,384 2, 17,866.20 25,53,250.20 

Oct-23 16,58, 102 63,428 28,67,557 (18,272.00) 28,49 ,285. 00 

Nov-23 16,05,848 61,786 29,53,478 16,729.90 29,70,207.90 
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Month No. of Turnover* Mark-To-
Contracts (in Mn US$) Market 

Traded Settlement + 
Premium 

Settlement 
(in US$) 

Dec-23 15,49,462 65,582 56,81, 171 

Jan-24 17,16,767 73,770 62,55, 100 

Feb-24 17,82,918 78,090 68,00,019 

Mar-24 17,60,417 77,806 52,68,044 

Final 
Settlement 
including 
Exercise 

Settlement 
(in US$) 

8,600.80 

49,580.80 

(2,96,364.40) 

6,44,056.70 

+JZNSE 
International 
Clearing 

Total 
Settlement 

(in US$) 

56,89,771.80 

63,04,680.80 

65,03,654.60 

59,12,100.70 

*Above Turnover includes the value of futures and the premium value of options.

The Details of NSEIFSC Receipts for the FY 2023-24 are as given in the table below: 

Month No. of Turnover' Total Settlement Value Quantity settled 
Contracts (in Mn US$) (in US$) via Depository 

Traded 
Apr-23 4721 0.02 2.20 0 

May-23 5157 0.03 3.67 0 

Jun-23 13823 0.06 3.30 0 

Jul-23 20686 0.09 7958.02 1200 

Aug-23 26081 0.16 6684.10 1210 

Sep-23 21832 0.18 4.80 0 

Oct-23 5244 0.04 2.30 0 

Nov-23 2646 0.02 0.80 0 

Dec-23 9561 0.09 217.05 15 

Jan-24 8923 0.05 2.70 0 

Feb-24 9227 0.08 3.71 0 

Mar-24 4888 0.02 427.50 60 
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IFSCA has come out with the following circulars related to Clearing Corporation or 
Clearing Members during the financial year 2023-24: 

S. No. Date 
1. 09-May-2023 

2. 28-Nov-2023 

3. 06-Feb-2024 

4. 08-Feb-2024 

Title 
Status of operations at 
Disaster Recovery 
(DR) Site of the Broker 
Dealers and Clearing 
Members registered 
with IFSCA 

Timelines for disposal 
of applications 

Fee structure for the 
entities undertaking or 
intending to undertake 
permissible activities in 
I FSC As amended up 
to Februarv 6, 2024 
Reporting Norms for 
Capital Market 
Intermediaries 
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Remarks: 
IFSCA has clarified that operations 
carried out by the Broker Dealers 
and Clearing Members, from their 
respective DR sites located outside 
GIFT-IFSC and within India, shall 
be deemed to have been carried 
out at GIFT-IFSC 
IFSCA has defined the time limits 
for disposal of applications by 
various divisions/departments. For 
Market Infrastructure Institution, 
which include Broker dealer, 
clearing member, Depository 
participant, Custodian, time limit for 
application disposal is 45 days. 

IFSCA has issued a circular on fee 
structure for the entities 
undertaking or intended to 
undertake permissible activities in 
IFSC. 

IFSCA has issued circular on 
reporting norms for capital market 
intermediaries under IFSCA 
(Capital Market Intermediaries) 
Regulations 2021 and under 
IFSCA Circular -
F. No. 817 /I FSCA/Distribution/2022-
23 dated December 21 , 2022 

Clearing Members are required to 
submit details to IFSCA on 
following: 
1. No. of clients onboarded. 
2. Revenue from operations. 
3. Volume of clearing activities 
4. No. of complaint or disputes 
5. Margin collection data for the 

Quarter. 



S. No. Date 

5. 01-Mar-2024 

Title 

Ease of doing 
business: Settlement of 
Client's Funds lying 
with Broker Dealer 

4. Jechno!oav Updates: 

Remarks: 

I FSCA has issue a circular with an 
objective to promote ease of doing 
business in IFSC and taking into 
account 
the representations from investors 
and discussions with the Stock 
Exchanges: 
i) Unless otherwise specified by 
IFSCA, settlement of funds shall be 
done as per 
the Agreement/Consent Letter 
between the Broker Dealer and its 
client. The 
Stock Exchanges in IFSC may 
specify the format of such 
Agreement/ Consent 
Letter for the Broker Dealers. 

NSE 
International 
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NICCL has a fully functional , best in class, technology platform to manage its daily 
operations, which includes, clearing and settlement, real time risk management and 
member interfaces for providing them information in real time as well as end of day. In 
addition, the company has setup robust cyber security operations using state of art 
technologies. The company has also setup redundancy at its Business Continuity site to 
ensure smooth operations, in case of a business disruption. 

The technology operations are managed 24X7 to ensure on time availability, in accordance 
with the nature of operations. 

The key highlights for the last year include: 

a. Build Resilient Systems: 

• DC-DR RTO 45 - RTO-45 was the technology initiative for ensuring smooth BCP 
operations. RTO45 was achieved across all NICCL system. It included process 
optimization, workflow implementation, single script for switchover. Multiple checks 
were implemented and automated to achieve start of business operations from the 
BCP site in less than 45 minutes. 

• Oracle Database RAC migration - For better server consolidation and easier workload 
management and enhanced protection from failure, across NICCL, RAC Migration 
project was taken up to build a resilient system to run all the components smoothly 
minimizing downtime. RAC runs with two nodes instead of legacy one node system 
which also improves database management system which reduces data loss to zero. 
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Technology improvement is a continuous process for every technology application. As a 
part of Technology improvement and enhancement, below projects were implemented in 
NICCL. 

• Technology revamp for Clearing & Settlement system - C&S system has been 
migrated to Java from Pro C. Advantage of this migration is to improve efficiency of 
the system and build a next-generation solution and resilient system. Another 
advantage is to reduce dependency on niche skilled C developers. 

• Risk Frontend technology change along with single frontend and role-based log in -
EDS Technology for EDS process was changed to java, Spring boot & Angular. It 
helped in newer technology stack as Java Spring-Boot, Spring Integration, Redis, 
Angular, supported introduction of caching of Master Data into REDIS, and enhanced 
User experience with a user-friendly interface. 

• Workflow optimization and providing key functionality on GUI - As part of workflow 
optimization, various workflows were integrated on Risk Front End GUI for ease of 
operations where Business users can login and perform workflow tasks with press of 
a button. 

• Build IT OPS GUI -A GUI was newly developed to monitor and perform IT Operations 
day to day activity. This includes monitoring system vitals and logs along with 
stop/start mechanism for every service of NICCL system which includes EOD and 
SOD. 

• Website migration to on premise for better management and cost-effective solution -
NICCL Website was migrated to on premise from AWS system. This proved to be a 
cost-effective solution from cost perspective as well as helped reduce compliance 
which were unresolvable on cloud-based solution. 

c. Implementation of SGX NIFTY Connect - the robustness of NICCL technology was 
tested on Jul 3, 2023, and no issues were faced. 

s. Financial _Summary I Highlights: 

Full Scale operations of NSEIX SGX Connect commenced from July 3, 2023 due to which 
the Company has generated revenue of Rs 1143.01 Lakhs from Clearing & Settlement 
Charges and Interest Income of Rs 522.62 Lakhs as against interest income of Rs 86.29 
Lakhs in FY 2022-23. 

Net Loss for the period under review has reduced from Rs 157 4.66 Lakhs in FY 2022-23 
to Rs 839.61 Lakhs, due to commencement of NSEIX SGX Connect operations and 
increased interest income. 
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The financial results for the year ended on March 31 , 2024, are summarized as below: 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

(Rs. In (USO in (Rs. In (USO 
lakhs) lakhs) lakhs) in 

lakhs) 
Income 1665.63 20.12 86.29 1.07 
Expenditure 2505.25 30.26 1660.95 20.60 
Profit/(Loss) before tax (839.61) (10.14) (1 ,574.66) (19.53) 
Add/(Less) provision for tax - - -
includina deferred tax) 

Profit/(Loss) after tax (839.61) (10.14) (1 ,574.66) (19.53) 
Add/ (Less): Items that will 72.00 353.12 -
be reclassified to profit or 
loss 
Add/(less): Items that will not (9.25) (0.11) 1.32 0.02 
be reclassified to profit or loss 
Total comorehensive income (776.86) (10.25) (1 ,220.22) (19.51) 
Profit/(Loss) bought forward (5669.50) (92.26) (4,449.28) (72.95) 
1&rom orevious vear 
Less: Contribution to core SGF (2503.17) (30.11) - -
Balance carried to Balance (8949.52) (132.82) (5,669.50) (92.46) 
Sheet 

There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year 2023-24. 

5.1. Dividend 

In view of the loss incurred by the Company for the year under review, the Board of 
Directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24. 

5.2. Transfer to Reserves 

In view of the loss incurred by the company, no transfer was made to the General 
Reserves for the financial year 2023-24. 

5.3. Loans, Guarantees and Investments Under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 • 

During the peri'od under review, the Company did not grant any loan to any person or 
body corporate and did not provide any guarantee or security in connection with loan to 
any person or body corporate. Further, the Company did not make any investment/ 
acquisition in terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 
2023-24. 
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5.4. Contracts or Arrangements with Related parties 
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All the related party transactions by the Company were in the ordinary course of 
business and were at arm's length basis. Transactions with related parties were 
conducted in a transparent manner, aligned with the interests of the Company and 
its Stakeholders. The particulars of the contracts or the arrangements with related parties 
form a part of the financial statements. 

5.5. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls 

Regarding the internal financial controls of the Company, the noteworthy feature of its 
operations was the high degree of automation in the key areas of its operations and 
processes. 

All the processes are also well documented with comprehensive and well defined 
Standard Operating Procedures (SoPs) which inter-alia include the financial controls in 
the form of maker-checker, strict adherence to financial delegation given by the Board at 
various levels, system controls, information security controls as well as role-based access 
controls. Further, these controls are periodically reviewed while introducing new 
processes/changes in the processes, changes in the systems, and changes in the 
personnel handling the activities. These controls are also independently reviewed by the 
internal auditors establish the adequacy and the effectiveness of controls. 

The Internal and the Secretarial Auditors of the Company reviewed the compliances with 
respect to the applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines and found them 
adequate. 

5.6. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture, or associate .Company. 

5. 7. Deposits 

The Company has not invited, accepted, or renewed any deposits within the meaning of 
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the requirement to furnish details 
relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply 
to the company, 

5.8. Risk Management 

The Company has formulated a comprehensive enterprise risk management policy. The 
policy covers the identification and assessment of different elements of risk and specifies 
measures to mitigate their impact on the Company's functioning. The Risk Management 
Committee of the Board meets every quarter to review the robustness and adequacy of 
the Company's risk management policy. 
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5.9. Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of 
the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
company and the date of the report 

There were no material changes and commitments during the F.Y. 2023-24 or between 
the end of the F.Y. 2023-24 and the date of this Report, that have adversely affected the 
financial position of the Company. 

The Company received approval from the I FSCA vide its letter dated May 19, 2023, 
granting recognition as a Clearing Corporation for a period of one year effective from May 
29, 2023 up to May 28, 2024. 

5.10.Significant Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
Impacting the Company 

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by the 
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals that would impact the status of the Company as a going 
concern. 

5.11. Explanations or Comments on the Auditor's Report 

The report of the Statutory Auditor forms a part of the financial statements. There were 
no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers by the Statutory Auditors 
(appointed under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013) in their report. 

5.12. Reporting of frauds by Auditors 

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditors 
reported to the Board of Directors under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
any instances of fraud committed against NICCL by its officers or employees. 

5.13.Share Capital 

During the year under review, the share capital of the Company underwent change as 
under: 

1. Authorised Share Capital 

The Governing Board and the members at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting on March 
15, 2023, and April 20, 2023, respectively, approved the increase in authorised share 
capital of the Company from Rs. 1,50,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crore) 
divided into 15,00,00,000 (Fifteen Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only} 
each to Rs. 3,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Three Hundred Crore) divided into 30,00,00,000 
(Thirty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only} each, and consequent 
amendment to the Memorandum of Association of the Company. 
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2. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital 
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The Governing Board on June 23, 2023, allotted 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) equity shares 
of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to NSE Clearing Limited, holding company of the 
Company. 

Further the Governing Board on September 28, 2023, allotted 15,00,00,000 (Fifteen 
Crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to NSE Clearing Limited, 
holding company of the Company. 

As on March 31, 2024, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company 
stood at Rs. 2,50,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundred and Fifty Crore) consisting of 
25,00,00,000 (Twenty Five Crore) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid 
up. 

Further, during the year, the Company has not issued any convertible securities. 

6. Registered Office: 

The registered office of the Company is situated at Unit-1202, Brigade International 
Financial Center, 12th floor, Block-14, Road 1C, Zone-1 , GIFT SEZ, GIFTCITY, 
Gandhinagar Gujarat - 382355. 

7. Extract of the Annual Return: 

In terms of the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, I FSC Public Companies are 
exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and henc~ the Company is not required to place copy of Annual Return on the 
website of the Company. 

8. Human Resources: 

The Company considers its employees as the most valuable resource and ensures 
strategic alignment of Human Resource practices to business priorities and objectives. 

As on March 31 , 2024, the Company had a dedicated human capital of 25 employees 
on the rolls of NICCL. 

In terms of the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, IFSC Public Companies are 
exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 and hence no disclosure is 
required to be made in the Boards' Report as per Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
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9. Disclosures under sexual Harassment of Women at workplace 
{Prevention, Peobibition & Redressan Act, 2013: 

The disclosures required to be given under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 are provided in the following 
table: 

The detail provided is as per the POSH annual report filed for the Calendar year 2024. 

1 Number of complaints of sexual Nil 
harassment received durina the year. 

2 Number of complaints disposed of during Not applicable 
"he year. 

3 Number of cases pending for more than Not applicable 
ninetv davs. 

14 Number of workshops or awareness Awareness Program for all employees 
programs against sexual harassment were conducted 
carried out. 

5 Nature of action taken bv the employer. Not applicable 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

10. Directors and Key Managerial personnel {KMP): 

10.1 . Directors: 

Following were the Directors as on March 31 , 2024: 

Sr. Name of Director DIN Category 
No. 
1 Mr. Kumar 06632984 Public Interest Director 

Kanakasabaoathv (Chairman) 
2 Mr. Kapil Seth 03596866 Public Interest Director 
3 Mr. Kamalakar Karlaoalem 09198185 Public Interest Director 
4 Mr. Mukesh Aaarwal 03054853 Shareholder Director 
5 Mr. Neerai Kulshrestha 02994647 Manaaina Director & CEO 

Further, following changes have taken place in the Board of Directors during the Financial 
Year. 

• Cessation of Director 

None of the Directors resigned during the financial year 2023-24. 
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• Appointment of Director 

NSE 
International 
Clearing 

IFSCA approved the appointment of Mr. Neeraj Kulshrestha as the Managing Director & 
CEO of the Company effective from July 24, 2023 for a period of 5 years. 

10.2. Director's e-KYC 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide amendment to the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 mandated, KYC of all the 
Directors through the e-form DIR-3 KYC. All Directors of NICCL have complied with the 
aforesaid requirement. 

10.3. Disclosure under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has received disclosures in Form DIR-8 required under Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and has noted that none of the Directors are disqualified on account 
of non-compliance with any of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Further, there were 
no acts of omission/commission by the company itself, leading to the disqualification of 
its directors. 

10.4. Declaration of Independence 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are as per Schedule 
IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Kumar Kanakasabapathy, Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem 
and Mr. Kapil Seth, Independent Directors have submitted a declaration that they meet 
the criteria of Independence as provided in sub section (6) of section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and that there have been no changes in the circumstances which 
may affect their status as Independent Directors during the year. 

In terms of section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, the Independent Director shall enroll 
his / her name in the Databank, being maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate 
Affairs to qualify as an Independent Director. The enrollment of all the Independent 
Directors of the ·company have been completed and they have furnished a declaration to 
the Board affirming compliance with the provisions contained under sub rule 1 & 2 of Rule 
6 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

All the Directors of the Company also adhere to the Fit and Proper person criteria as 
specified in IFSCA (MIi) Regulations, 2021 . 

10.5. Directors Retiring by Rotation 

Pursuant to the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public Companies 
are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 152 (6) & (7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and hence none of the Directors of the Company shall retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
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10.6. Key Managerial/Management Personnels (KMPs) 

Following were the Key Managerial Personnels as on March 31 , 2024 
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Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Neeraj Kulshrestha, Managing Director & CEO, 
Ms. Hemal Davda, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Arjav Trivedi, Company Secretary, are 
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

In addition to the above Mr. Vivek Singhvi, Chief Risk & Regulatory Officer and 
Compliance Officer, Mr. Sushil Limbulkar, Chief Technology Officer, Mr. Gaurang 
Thakkar, Chief Information Security Officer, Mr. Saroj Nanda, Head - Clearing & 
Settlement, Mr. Sharad Sharma, Head - Risk Management and Mr. Amit Prabhu, Senior 
Manager - ADM are the Key Management Personnel as per IFSCA (MIi) Regulations, 
2021 . 

Further, following changes have taken place in the Key Managerial/Management 
Personnels during the Financial Year: 

- Mr. Vivek Singhvi ceased to be CEO and was appointed Chief Risk and Regulatory 
Officer and Mr. Neeraj Kulshrestha was appointed as the Managing Director & CEO 
with effect from July 24 2023, 

- Mr. Nitin Bhadre ceased to be CFO with effect from August 28, 2023 and Ms. Hemal 
Davda was ·appointed as CFO with effect from October 16 2023, 

- Ms. Jinal Shah ceased to be Compliance Officer with effect from August 16, 2023 and 
Mr. Vivek Singhvi was appointed as the Compliance Officer with effect from October 
17, 2023, . 

- Mr. Ravin Tank ceased to be Company Secretary with effect from August 16, 2023 and 
Mr. Arjav Tdvedi was appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from December 
06, 2023, and 

- Mr. Amit Prabhu, Senior Manager - ADM was designated as KMP with effect from 
January 17, 2024. 

11 . NICCL Board: 

11.1. Board Evaluation 

In terms of regulation 24(4) of IFSCA MIi Regulations, 2021 , the Governing Board of a 
recognized market infrastructure institution shall review the overall performance and the 
performance of its Individual directors and Independent External Person (IEP) regularly. 

The performance of all the Directors and Independent External Person (IEP) was 
evaluated by the entire Board except the person being evaluated. The performance of the 
Committees was evaluated by the Board. The NRC also carried out the evaluation of 
Individual Directors and Independent External Person (IEP). The Board also carried out 
the evaluation ·of their own performance apart from its Committees and Individual 
Directors and I EPs. 
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11 .1.1 The criteria for evaluation for each of the above are as follows: 

11 .1.1.1 Performance evaluation of the Board 
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The performance of the Board of Directors is evaluated on the basis of various 
governance and business-related parameters which include, inter-alia, Corporate 
Governance standards adopted by the Board such as Board composition, Board 
Dynamics, Board Information, Board Strategy, Board and Management Team 
Relationship, Board Member Engagement and Development, Engagement with 
Shareholders, Regulators and Other Key Stakeholders, etc. The evaluation was done 
based on a questionnaire with the aim to evaluate the Board's own performance and to 
evaluate the performance of individual directors. 

The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board 
seeking inputs from each of the Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation of the 
Board included _the board composition, shared vision, strategy, effectiveness of board 
processes and adequacy of information to the Board. The criteria for performance 
evaluation of i'ndividual Directors included acting independently and in the best interests 
of the Company and contributing to the Board meetings by devoting sufficient time to 
understand the issues under discussion. The Chairman of the Board was also evaluated 
on the key aspects of the role. The same was responded to by the Board members. 
6.1.1.2 Performance evaluation of the Committees 

In addition to the principles stated above for evaluation of the Board, to the extent 
applicable to the respective committees, constructive recommendations made by the 
Committee(s) to the Board are also kept in mind while evaluating their performance. 

11.2. Number of Board Meetings 

Regular Meetings of the Board were held to discuss and decide on all the relevant aspects 
of the functioning of the organization. The tentative schedule of Board Meetings to be 
held in any financial year is circulated to the Directors in advance to enable them to plan 
their schedule and ensure participation in the meetings. 

During the finahcial year 2023-24, 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were held on April 05, 2023, 
April 20, 2023, April 26, 2023, June 05, 2023, July 19, 2023, August 29, 2023, October 
17, 2023, January 17, 2024, and March 06, 2024. The maximum gap between any two 
meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. 

The details of the attendance of the directors at the meetings held on the above 
dates are given in the table hereunder: 

Name Number of meetings held Number of 
during tenure of the meetings attended 

directors 
Mr. Kumar 9 9 
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Name Number of meetings held 

. 
Kanakasabaoathv 
Mr. Kamalakar Karlaoalem 
Mr. Mukesh Aaarwal 
Mr. Kaoil Seth 
Mr. Neerai Kulshrestha* 

*Appointed w.e.f. July 24, 2023. 

11.3. Committees of the Board 

during tenure of the 
directors 

9 
9 
9 
4 

Number of 
meetings attended 

9 
8 
9 
4 
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Pursuant to Regulation 26 of IFSC(MII) Regulations, 2021 read with IFSC Circular dated 
June 28, 2022, bearing reference No. IFSCNCMD/DMIIT/MII/CG/2022-23/1 the 
Company has constituted following Functional and Oversight Committees namely: 

i. Member Selection Committee 
ii. Investor Grievance Redressal Committee 
iii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
iv. Standing Committee on Technology 
v. Advisory Committee 
vi. Audit Committee 
vii. Regulatory Oversight Committee 
viii. Risk Management Committee 

The terms of reference of the Board Committees are determined by the Board from time 
to-time. Meetings of the Board Committees are normally convened by the respective 
Committee Chairman. Matters requiring the Board's attention / approval, as emanating 
from the Board_ Committee Meetings, are placed before the Board with clearance of the 
Committee Chairman. All the recommendations made by Board Committees during the 
year were accepted by the Board. Minutes of the Board Committee Meetings are placed 
before the Board for its information. The role and composition of these Committees, 
including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related 
attendance, are provided below:-

Risk Management Committee (RMC) 

The Committee. consists of three Directors viz., Mr. Kapil Seth, PIO, Mr. K Kumar, PIO 
and Mr. Prasad koparkar, IEP, as its members with Mr. Kapil Seth, as its Chairperson. 

During the financial year 2023-24, 6 (Six) meetings of the RMC were held on April 19, 
2023, April 26, 2023, June 05, 2023 July 19, 2023, October 17, 2023 and January 16, 
2024. 

The details of the attendance of the Members at the meetings held on the above dates 
are given in the table hereunder: 
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Name Number of meetings held during Number of meetings 
membership of Director/lEP attended 

Mr. Kaoil Seth 6 6 
Mr. K Kumar 6 6 
Mr. Prasad Kooarkar 6 5 

The brief terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 
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► To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall be approved by the 
Governing Board 

► To review the Risk Management Framework & risk mitigation measures from time to 
time 

► To monitor and review enterprise-wide risk management plan and lay down 
procedures to inform Board members about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures 

► The Head of the Risk Management Department shall report to the Risk Management 
Committee and to the Managing Director of the Clearing Corporation 

► The Risk Management Committee shall monitor implementation of the risk 
management policy and keep the IFSCA, and the Governing Board informed about 
its implementation and deviation, if any 

Audit Committee 

The Committee consists of three Directors viz., Mr. Kapil Seth, PIO, Mr. K Kumar, PIO, 
Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem, PIO as its members with Mr. Kapil Seth, as its chairperson. 

During the financial year 2023-24, 5 (Five) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 
April 20, 2023, July 19, 2023, October 17, 2023, January 17, 2024 and March 06, 2024. 

The details of the attendance of the Members at the meetings held on the above date is 
given in the tabl~ hereunder: 

Name Number of meetings held Number of meetings attended 
during membership of 

Director 
Mr. Kaoil Seth 5 5 
Mr. K Kumar 5 5 

Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem 5 5 

The brief terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows: 

► To recommend appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of 
the Clearing Corporation. 

► To review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and the 
effectiveness of the audit process. 

► To examine the financial statement and the auditor's report thereon. 
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► Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Clearing Corporation 
with related parties. 

► To scrutinize the inter-corporate loans and investments. 
► Valuation . of undertakings or assets of the Clearing Corporation, wherever it is 

necessary. 
► To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems. 
► To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 
► In addition to the above, it will also discharge the function as Audit Committee under 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprises three Directors viz., 
Mr. Kapil Seth,_ PIO, Mr. K Kumar, PIO and Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem, PIO, as its 
members with Mr. Kapil Seth as its Chairperson. 

During the financial year 2023-24, 3 (Three) meetings of the NRC were held on April 19, 
2023, October 17, 2023, and January 17, 2024. 

The details of the attendance of the Members at the meetings held on the above date is 
given in the table hereunder: 

Name Number of meetings held Number of meetings 
during membershio of Director attended 

Mr. Kapil Seth 3 3 
Mr. K Kumar 3 3 
Mr. Kamalakar Karlaoalem 3 3 

The information regarding the performance evaluation criteria of Independent Directors is 
covered in the Board's Report. 

The brief terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as follows: 

► Identify a KMP, other than personnel as specifically provided in its definition under 
MIi Regulations. 

► Lay down the policy for compensation of KMP in terms of the compensation norms 
prescribed by I FSCA from time to time. 

► Determine the compensation of KMPs in terms of the compensation policy. 
► Determine the tenure of a KMP, other than a director, to be posted in a regulatory 

department. 
► Select the Managing Director. 
► Frame & review the performance review policy to carry out evaluation of every 

director's performance, including that of PIO. 
► Recommend whether to extend the term of appointment of the PIO. 
► Besides the above, it will also discharge the function as Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee under the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. 
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Standing Committee on Technology (SCOT) 

The Committee consists of Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem, PIO, Mr. K Kumar, PIO, Mr. 
Sameer Kulkarni, Independent External Person and Mr. Srikumar Krishnamoorthy, 
Independent External Person as its members with Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem, as its 
Chairperson. 

During the financial year 2023-24, 5 (Five) meetings of the SCOT were held on April 19, 
2023, July 14, 2023, October 17, 2023, January 16, 2024 and March 4, 2024. 

Name Number of meetings held during Number of 
membership of Director/ IEP meetinas attended 

Mr. Kamalakar Karlaoalem 5 5 
Mr. K Kumar 5 5 
Mr. Sameer Kulkarni 5 5 
Mr. Srikumar Krishnamoorthv 5 5 

The brief terms of reference of Standing Committee on Technology are as follows: 

► Monitor whether the technology used by the Clearing Corporation remains up to date 
and meets the growing demands; 

► Monitor the adequacy of system capacity and efficiency; 
► Examine the changes being suggested to the existing software/hardware; 
► Investigate jnto the problems relating to computerized risk management / clearing & 

settlement system, such as hanging/ slowdown/ breakdown; 
► Ensure that transparency is maintained in disseminating information regarding 

slowdown/break down in risk management/ clearing & settlement system; 
► The Committee shall submit a report to the Governing Board of the Clearing 

Corporation and the Governing Board will deliberate on the report and suitable action/ 
remedial measure will be taken; 

► Any delay in clearing and settlement operations will be explained and reported to the 
Authority; 

► Review the implementation of the Governing Board approved cyber security and 
resilience policy and its implementation; 

► Such other matters in the scope as may be referred by the Governing Board of the 
Clearing Corporations and/or IFSCA. 

Advisory Committee 

The Advisory Committee presently comprises of 3 Clearing members and Mr. K Kumar, 
PIO, who acts as its chairperson. 
The brief terms of reference of Advisory Committee includes advising the Governing 
Board on non-regulatory and operational matters including product design, technology, 
charges and levies. 

During the financial year 2023-24, 2 (Two) meetings of the Advisory Committee were held 
on July 19, 2023 and January 17, 2024. 
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Name Number of meetings held 
during membership of Director/ 

Authorized representative 
Mr. Kumar 2 
Kanakasabapathv 
Authorized representative 2 
of Globe Capital (IFSC) 
Limited 
Authorized representative 2 
of PACE Financial IFSC 
Private Limited 
Authorized representative 2 
of Stockholding Securities 
IFSC Limited 

Regulatory Oversight Committee 

Number of meetings 
attended 

2 

2 

2 

2 
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The Committee consists of Mr. Kapil Seth, PID, Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem, PID, 
Dr. Golaka Nath, Independent External Person, as its members with Mr. Kapil Seth, as 
its Chairperson. • 

During the financial year 2023-24, 3 (Three) meetings of the ROC were held on April 19, 
2023, October 16, 2023 and January 16, 2024. 

Name Number of meetings held Number of meetings attended 
during membership of 

Director/lEP 
Mr. Kaoil Seth 3 3 
Mr. Kamalakar 3 3 
Karlapalem 
Dr. Golaka Nath 3 3 

The brief terms of reference of Regulatory Oversight Committee are as follows: 

► Oversee matters related to member regulation such as admission of members, 
inspection, disciplinary action, etc. 

► Oversee IFSCA inspection observations on membership related issues; 
► Estimate adequacy of resources dedicated to member regulation; 
► Monitor the disclosures made under the MIi Regulations and the circulars issued 

thereunder; 
► Review the actions taken to implement the suggestions of IFSCA's Inspection Reports 

and place it before the Governing Board of Clearing Corporation; 
► To follow up and ensure compliance/ implementation of the inspection observations; 
► Supervising the functioning of Investors' Services Cell of the Clearing Corporation 

which includes review of complaint resolution process, review of complaints unresolved 
over long period of time, estimate the adequacy of resources dedicated to investor 
services, etc; . 
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► Lay down procedures for the implementation of the Code of Ethics; 
► Prescribe reporting formats for the disclosures required under the Code of Ethics; 
► Oversee the implementation of the Code of Ethics; 
► Periodically monitor the dealings in securities of the KMP; 
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► Periodically monitor the trading conducted by firms/corporate entities in which the 
directors hold twenty percent or more beneficial interest or hold a controlling interest; 

► Reviewing the fees and charges levied by a Clearing Corporation; 
► Monitoring the implementation of MIi Regulations and other applicable rules and 

regulations along with IFSCA Circulars and other directions issued thereunder; 
► The head(s) of department(s) handling the above matters shall report directly to the 

Committee and also to the Managing Director; 
► Any action of a recognized Clearing Corporation against the aforesaid head(s) shall be 

subject to an appeal to the Committee, within such period as may be determined by 
the Governing Board. 

Member Selection Committee 

The Committee· consists of Mr. Kapil Seth, PIO, Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem, PIO, 
Mr. Neeraj Kulshrestha, MD & CEO as Members with Mr. Kapil Seth, as its Chairperson. 
Further, the Committee was reconstituted by appointment of Mr. Neeraj Kulshrestha and 
cessation of Mr. ·vivek Singhvi as member w.e.f. October 17, 2023. 

During the financial year 2023-24, 3 (Three) meetings of the MSC were held on July 19, 
2023, October 16, 2023 and January 17, 2024. 

Name Number of meetings held Number of meetings 
during membership of attended 

Director 
Mr. Kaoil Seth 3 3 
Mr. Kamalakar 3 3 
Karlaoalem 
Mr. Vivek SinQhvi* 2 2 
Mr. Neerai Kulshrestha* 1 1 

* w.e.f October 17, 2023 

The brief terms of reference of Member Selection Committee are as follows: 
► To scrutinize, evaluate, accept or reject applications for admission of members and 

transfer of membership and approve voluntary withdrawal of membership 
► Formulate policy for regulatory actions, including warning, monetary fine, suspension, 

deactivation of terminal , declaring a member as defaulter, expulsion, to be taken for 
various violations by the members of the Clearing Corporation 

► Based on the laid down policy, the Committee shall consider the cases of violations 
observed during inspection, etc. and impose appropriate regulatory measure on the 
members of the Clearing Corporation 

► While imposing the regulatory measure, the Committee shall adopt a laid down 
process, based on the 'Principles of natural justice' 
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► Realize the assets / deposits of defaulter/expelled member and appropriate amongst 
various dues and claims against the defaulter/ expelled member in accordance with 
the Rules, Byelaws and Regulations of the Clearing Corporation 

► Admission /rejection of claims against such members over the assets of the 
defaulter/expelled member 

► To manage the Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Core SGF) of the Clearing 
Corporation, including its investment as per the laid down norms and ensure proper 
utilization of Core SGF 

Investor Grievance Redressal Committee (IGRC) 

The Grievance Redressal Committee Panel of the parent company i.e. NSE Clearing 
Limited was being utilized for NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited, basis on the 
approval received from IFSCA till January 16, 2024. 

The Governing Board at its meeting held on January 17, 2024, approved the constitution 
of Investor Grievance Redressal Committee at NICCL comprising of the existing panel 
members of the _Investor Grievance Redressal Committee (IGRC) of NSEIX. 

The Investor Grievance Redressal Committee of NICCL consists of Mr. Ashish Shah, 
Mr. Ashok Shah, Mr. Kunal Vaishnav, Mr. Rajesh Shah, Mr. Sandeep Shroff and 
Mr. Shantanu Mehta as Panel Members. 

During the financial year 2023-24, no meeting of IGRC was conducted. 

The brief terms ·of reference of Investor Grievance Redressal Committee are as fol lows: 

► To deal with the complaints referred to it by the Clearing Corporation, hear the parties 
and resolve their complaints / disputes. 

11.4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) 

The Company does not transcend the threshold limits as required under Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly is not required to constitute a CSR Committee 
to discharge the functions mandated under the provisions so prescribed. 

11.5. Company·•s Policy on Directors' Appointment and Remuneration including 
Criteria for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes, Independence of 
Directors 

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company as per the exemption notification no. G.S.R. 08(E) dated January 4, 2017. 
Further, the Governing Board at its meeting held on January 17, 2024 pursuant to 
Regulation 26 of the International Financial Services Centres Authority (Market 
Infrastructure Institutions) Regulations, 2021 read with IFSCA circular dated June 28, 
2022, approved the Policy for Nomination and Appointment of Directors, KMPs and 
Senior Management and Remuneration Policy of the Company .. 
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During the year under review, none of the Non-Executive Directors was drawing any 
remuneration from the Company. The sitting fees were paid to Mr. Kumar 
Kanakasabapathy, Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem and Mr. Kapil Seth, Public Interest Director 
of the Company and the same was in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules specified thereunder. 

11.6. Directors' Responsibility Statement 

Your Directors' .confirm that 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departure, 
if any. 

ii. They have selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and have 
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent to give a true and 
fair view of the situation of the Company as of March 31 , 2024 and of the loss of 
the Company for the year. 

iii. They have. taken proper care to maintain adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing frauds and other irregularities. 

iv. They have ensured that the annual accounts were prepared on a going concern 
basis. 

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 
that such internal financial controls were adequate and effective. 

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provision of all 
applicable -laws and such systems were adequate and effective. 

12. Statutory Auditors: 

M/s K.S. Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company at the 5th Annual General Meeting held on June 20, 2022, for a 
period of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the 5th Annual General Meeting ti ll the 
conclusion of the 11 th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027. 

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors, M/s. K.S. Aiyar & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants on the financial statements of the Company forms a part of the Annual 
Report. 

13. secretarial Audit: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed 
M/s. Kashyap Mehta & Associates, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report issued 
by them is annexed herewith as Annexure 1. The report does not contain any 
qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks. 
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14. Cost Audit/Cost Records: 

NSE 
International 
Clearing 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to maintain cost records and to 
appoint cost auditors during the year. 

15. Opportunities: 

Your Company is committed to explore all opportunities to harness the potential offered 
by the sector. 

15.1 . NICCL proposes to become a Local Operating Unit accredited with Global Legal 
Entity Identifier Foundation (GLEIF) for issuance of Legal Entity Identifier to IFSCA 
Regulated entities. 

15.2. NICCL proposes to facilitate foreign investors to subscribe to Sovereign Green 
Bond, in IFSC, proposed to be auctioned by Government of India. Additionally, 
these Bonds shall be available for OTC reporting and settlement in GIFT IFSC 
through NICCL. 

16. Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption And foreign Exchange 
Earnings/Outgo: 

The Company has always been conscious of the need to conserve energy. The Company 
is continuously identifying area where energy can be saved and appropriate measures 
have been taken for optimizing energy conservation: 

16.1.Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption 

General Lighting System, PAC System and Power distributions system: 

(A) LED lights have been used for office area lighting in place of conventional CFL type 
lights. LED lights consume less energy and have more longevity and reliability than 
that of conventional CFL lights. 

(B) Regular maintenance of Precision Air Conditioning (PAC) system for Data Centre 
Cooling and Maintaining of optimum thermal parameters at PAC units has reduced 
the electrical energy consumption. 

(C) Maintained near unity power factor in distributions system. 
(D) 25% lighting consumption savings on total saving and 20% HVAC consumption 

savings 011 total savings on account. 
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Occupancy Sensors: 

NSE 
International 
Clearing 

Occupancy sensors have been installed so that lights get switched off automatically when 
the area is not . in use. This has also reduced the energy consumption substantially 
towards lighting. 

Energy Conservative Measures taken up for the building by GIFT City Limited 

District Cooling System (DCS): 

The office air conditioning is being fed from GIFT's District Cooling System with state of 
the art technology with Thermal Energy Storage System. This has resulted in reduction 
of electricity consumption towards operation of Air-Conditioning System in NSE IFSC's 
office area by around 30366 Tr-Hr in FY-23-24 as compared to conventional AC System. 

16.2. Foreign Exchange earnings/outgo 

The Company operates in International Financial Service Centre (IFSC) located in GIFT 
SEZ Gandhinag_ar Gujarat. By virtue of operating in IFSC zone the functional currency of 
the Company is.United State Dollar (USO) and the reporting currency is INR. Accordingly, 
for the purpose of determining foreign exchange inflow the equity contribution from 
holding company NSE Clearing Limited has been considered and for the purpose of 
foreign exchange outflow the conversion of amount from USD to INR is considered. The 
transaction of the Company with entities located in IFSC are not being considered for the 
purpose of foreign exchange earnings and expense. Company generates its revenue 
from operations and investment income in USD only. 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review: 

Foreign exchange inflow - USD 1,92,36,320.25 (P.Y. NIL) 
Foreign Exchange Outflow- USD 33,67,000.00 (P.Y. USO 16,51 ,700.00) 
Foreign Exchange Earnings - NIL (P.Y. NIL) 
Foreign exchange capital and operational expense - USD 1,04, 168.64 (P.Y. USD 
12,475.98) 

17. Proceedin_gs Under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016: 

MCA has vide. Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021, effective from April 01, 
2021, amended:rule 8 with respect to the disclosures of details of an application made or 
any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the 
year along with their status as at the end of the financial year. The same was not 
applicable to your Company as there are no such applications made or proceedings 
pending under t_he Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 with respect to your Company. 

18. Difference In Amount of the Valuation: 

MCA has vide -Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021 , effective from April 01 , 
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2021, amended the rule 8 with respect to the disclosures of details of the difference 
between the amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the 
valuation done while taking a loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the 
reasons thereof. The same was not applicable to your Company as there was no such 
instance of either settlement or loan from a Bank or Financial Institution during the year 
under review. 

19. Acknowledgment: 

The Board of Directors is grateful for the support and co-operation extended by NSE 
Clearing Limited and its group companies and looks forward to their continued support 
and co-operation. The Board would also like to place on record its deep appreciation of 
the contribution made by all the employees towards the establishment and development 
of the Comparty. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 24, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board otpir ectors 

~,~r:i Gt,'.?'.,oo 

' ~-- ~ li ~c-;JO \J\ , "'-../ " ~~ )~ 
Kumar Kana asabapathy ~...»J' ~ ~ 
DIN:0663298 ~ * ·i~ -Chairman 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

• SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31sT MARCH, 2024 

. [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 J 

To 
The Members, 
NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited 
Unit-1202, Brigade International Financial Centre 
12th Floor, Block-14, Road lC, Zone-1, GIFT SEZ, 
GIFT City, Gandhinagar-382 355 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
• to good. corporate practices by NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED [CIN: 
U65990GJ2016PLC094545] (' hereinafter called the Company' ) having Registered Office at Unit-1202, Brigade 
International Financial Centre, 12th Floor, Block-14, Road IC, Zone-1 , GIFT SEZ, GIFT City, Gandhinagar -
382355. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company' s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives electronically as well as on physical verification of documents during the conduct of 
secretarial .audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 3pt March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subjectto the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

(i) • The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) Th_e Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and .the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment; 

(v) The Securities Contract (Regulation) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulations, 201 2; -
Not applicable during audit period. 
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(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
• Regulations, 2011 - Not applicable during audit period 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 -
Not applicable during the audit period 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable during the audit period 

(d) · Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 
- Not applicable during the audit period 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the audit period 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not applicable during 
audit period 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of!ndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not 
applicable during the audit period 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - Not 
applicable during the audit period; and 

(vii) . The Company has identified and confirmed the following laws, as being specifically applicable to the 
Company: 

1. International Financial Services Centre Authority (Capital Market Intermediaries) Regulations, 2021 

2. IFSCA (Market Infrastructure Institutions) Regulations, 2021 

3. Special Economic Zone Act, 2005 and SEZ Rules, 2006 

4. Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Orders, notification and Directives issued under the above statue to the 
extent applicable. 
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We have -rel_ied on representation made by the Company, its Officers and on the reports given by designated 
professionals for systems and processes formed by the Company to monitor and ensure compliances under other 
applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 

We have aJso examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards SS-1 & SS-2 issued by 
The Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulation_s, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

The· Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors & Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

. Adequ~te notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance except in some instance wherein shorter notice was consented by the 
Directors in compliance of rules, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions in the Board is carried through, while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. • 

We further report that the Company by obtaining approval of members on 20th April, 2023 increased its 
authorised Share capital from Rs. 150,00,00,000/- to Rs. 300,00,00,000/- divided into 30,00,00,000 equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- and has complied with the necessary formalities in this regard. 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company through circular resolution dated 29th June, 2023 
• had allotted 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at par to NSE Clearing Limited aggregating to 
Rs •. 10 crores. The Company has complied with the necessary formalities in this behalf. 

We further report that the _Board of Directors of the Company through circular resolution dated 28th September, 
2023 had allotted 15,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at par to NSE Clearing Limited aggregating to 
Rs. 150 crores. The Company has complied with the necessary formalities in this behalf. 
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We further report that during the audit period the Company has not passed any Special Resolution. 

Place:Ahmedabad 
Date: 15th April, 2024 

FOR KASHYAP R. MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

KASHY APR. MEHTA 
PROPRIETOR 

FRN: S2011GJ166500 
FCS-1821 COP-2052 PR-583/2019 

UDIN:F001821F000122480 

... 

Disclaimer: We have conducted the assignment by examining the Secretarial Records including Minutes, Documents, Registers and 
other records etc., received by way of electronic mode from the Company and also have been verified from the original records. The 
management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are true and correct. This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances 
on laws I regulations /guidelines listed in our report which have been complied by the Company pertaining to Financial Year 2023-24. 
We are not commenting on the Statutory Compliances whose due dates are extended by Regulators from time to time or still there is 
time line to comply with such compliances. 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- 1 and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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Annexure -1 

To, 
The Members, 
NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that co.rrect facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we fol.lowed 
provide a· reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, ru les 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
. efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 15th April, 2024 

FOR KASHYAP R. MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
COMP ANY SECRET ARIES 

' ..., 
KASHY APR. MEHTA 

PROPRIETOR 
FRN: S2011GJ166500 

CS-1821 COP-2052 PR-583/2019 
UDIN:F001821F000122480 

... ... 



Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members ofNSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited 

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements 

Opinion 

K. S. AIYAR & CO 
C HARTERED ACCOUNTANT S 

# F-7, Laxmi Mills 
Shakti Mills Lane (Off Dr E Moses Rd) 
Mahalaxmi, Mumbai • 400 011 India 
Tel : 91 22 2493 2502 / 6655 1 rn, 
Fax: 91 226655 1774 
Grams : VERifY 
www.KSAiyar.com 
Mail@KSAiyar.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofNSE IFSC Clearing Corporation 
Limited ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 20 13 
(' the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31 , 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the following matter as Key Audit Matter/s for the year. 

Offices also at 
Chennai Kolkata 
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We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board ' s report but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor' s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financi al performance 
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the rules 
made thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
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auditor' s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fo r 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery , 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and , based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
abi lity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor 's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going conce1:n. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning of the scope of our audit work and evaluat ing 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the 
financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control thcit we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the 
Government of India - Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the annexure ' A' a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that : 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor ' s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

(i) The Company has no pending litigations its which would impact its financi al 
position - refer note 28 to the financial statements . 

(i i) The Company does not have any long-term contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have any derivative contracts 
- refer note 29(a) to the financial statements. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company - refer note 30 to the financial 
statements. 

(iv) 

(a) 

(b) 

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities. 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any maru1er 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief: 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign en tities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall , whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behal f of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

( c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate by 
us in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 ( e) as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, 
reporting the compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 
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K. S. AIYAR & CO 
C HARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used 
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31 , 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded 
in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 
April 1, 2023 , reporting under Rule l l(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements fo r record 
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 24, 2024 

For K. S. Aiyar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 100186W 

~ . AN~ 
Sachin A. Negandhi 
Partner 
Membership No: 112888 
UDIN: 24112888BKBISF3482 
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K. S. AIYAR & CO 
CHARTERED A CCOUNTA NT S 

Annexure to the Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' of our Report of even date on the financial statements for the year ended on 
March 31 , 2024, of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited) 

In our opinion, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered 
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the normal 
course of audit, which were necessary to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant 
details of right to use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by 
the management during the year and in our opinion the frequency of verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable properties. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3(i)( c) of the Order are not applicable. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(i)(d) 
are not applicable. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have 
been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31 , 2024, for holding 
any benami property under the Benan1i Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(a) 

(b) 

The Company is a service Company and therefore does not maintain any inventory; 
the directions in this regard are therefore not applicable. 

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of~ 5 crore, 
in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under 
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

As informed, the Company has not made investments in or provided any guarantee 
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. 
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3 (iii) of the Order are not applicabl e. 

As informed, the Company has not advanced any loans, made any investments or 
given any guarantees and securities. Accordingly, clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
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(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

(viii) 

(ix) 

(x) 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

K. S. AIYAR & CO 
C HARTERED A CCO UNTANTS 

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public and consequently the 
directives issued by the Reserve Bank oflndia, provisions of section 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 
thereunder, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not app li cable 
to the Company. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board, National 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any other court or any other tribunal. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government 
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of secti on 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services carried out by the Company. 

According to the records of the Company, goods and services tax, provident fund, 
income tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it 
have been generally regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate 
authorities. As informed to us, the directions relating to employee's state insurance 
are not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undi sputed 
dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund , income-tax, duty of 
customs, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year-end for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

According to the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence 
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no 
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the no funds raised 
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes. 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or JOmt ventures . 

(a) 

Accordingly, accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) durin g the year 
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(xi) 

(xii) 

(xiii) 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

(xvi) 

(xvii) 

(xviii) 

(xix) 

K. S. AIYAR & CO 
CHA RT ERED A CC OUN T ANTS 

(b) The Company has not made any preferenti al allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully , partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year and 
accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not app licable. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

(d) 

No fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
repo1ied during the year. 

No report under sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been fil ed 
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of thi s 
report. 

According to the information and explanations furnished by the management, which 
have been relied upon by us, there were no whi stl e blower complaints received 
during the year by the Company. 

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business. 

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures. 

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with them. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of Indi a Act, 
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

In our opinion, there is only one core investment company within the Group 
('Companies in the Group' as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016). 

In our opinion, the Company has incurred cash loss of { 375 .09 lakhs in the current 
financial year and~ 1159.85 lakhs in the immediately preced ing financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and 
accordingly clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reali sa ti on of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
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(xx) 

K. S. AIYAR & CO 
C HARTER.ED ACCOU NTANT S 

accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors 
and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet 
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). 
Accordingly , reporting under clause J(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not app li cable 
for the year. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 24, 2024 

For K. S. Aiyar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 100186W 

~ - A -N~ 

Sachin A. Negandhi 
Partner 
Membership No: 112888 
UDIN: 24112888BKBISF3482 
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K. S. AIYAR & CO 
C HART E RED A CCO UNTANTS 

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial 
Statements of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of NSE 
IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction 
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants oflndia. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company' s policie . 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliabl e financi al 
info rmation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 . 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 , to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit oflnternal Financial Control s and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether internal financial control s with reference to financi al 
statements was establi shed and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness ex ists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements. 
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K. S. AIYAR & CO 
CHARTERED A CC OUNTANTS 

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financ ial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generall y 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that ( l) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail , accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or di sposition of the company's assets that could have a materi al 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected . Also, proj ections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control s 
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31 , 2024, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 24, 2024 

For K. S. Aiyar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
TCAI Firm Registration No. 100186W 

S ~ - A -N~· 
Sachin A. Negandhi 
Partner 
Membership No: 112888 
UDIN: 24112888BKBISF3482 
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 

Particulars Notes As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (USD In Lakhs) 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Propertv. plant & eouipmenl and Intangible assets 

-Propertv. olant and eQuipment 2 117.25 1.30 
-RIQht-Or-u se Assets (ROU) 2 81.45 0.96 
-Other inlanoible assets 3 1.186.51 14.29 
-lntanoible assets under develoomenl 3 0.00 0.00 

Financia l assets 
- Other financial assets 

Non-current bank balances 4 7.174.32 86.05 
Othet'S 4 344.25 4.13 

Income tax assets (net) 87.71 1.04 

Total non .. current assets 8,991.49 107.77 

Investments - Settlement Guaranlee Fund 5 3.825.11 45.87 
Current assets 
Flnanclal assets 
• Trade receivables 6 104.20 1.25 
• Cash and cash 8Quivalents 7 1.683.39 20.19 
- Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 8 7.908.01 94.85 
- Other financial assets 9 239.92 2.88 
Other current assets 10 66.49 0.80 

Total current assets 10,002.01 119.97 

TOTAL ASSETS 22,818.60 273.61 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
Eaultv Share capital 11A 25.000.00 325.34 
OtherEol.itv 118 (8 949.54) /132.83) 
TOTAL EQUITY 16,050.46 192.51 

Settlement Guarantee Fund (SGF) 12 3,825.12 45.88 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
• Lease liabilitv 108.16 1.31 

Provisions 13 47.84 0.57 
Total non-current liabilities 156.00 1.88 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
- Lease liability 4.85 0.05 
- Trade payables 1 ◄ 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 10.93 0.13 
enierp~ses 
(ii) total oulslandino dues of cteditors other than micro 288.57 3.38 
enterp,ises and smaJI enterprises 

- Deposits 15 2,063.59 24.75 
- Other financial llabilities 16 186.17 2.23 
Provisions 17 141.78 1.70 
Other current liabilities 18 91 .14 1.09 

Total current liabilit.ies 2,787.02 33.34 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,768.14 81 .10 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22 818.60 273.61 

Summary of material accounUng policies 
Noles refer to above form an intearal part of the Balance Sheet 

As per our report of even date attached 

AS at 31.03.2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

88.71 
88.21 

1.031.71 
251.87 

2.647 .38 
74 85 
30.33 

4,213.06 

1.191.34 

0.00 
808.37 
641 .29 

12.94 
50.56 

1,513.16 

6 ,917.56 

9.000.00 
(5,669.50) 
3,330.50 

1.191.34 

111.29 
10.68 

121.97 

3.86 

7.50 

807. 16 

1.015.46 
308.39 

27.40 
103.98 

2,273.75 

3 ,587.06 

6917 .56 

As at 31.03.2023 

(USD in Lakhs) 

0.97 
1.07 

12.59 
3.13 

32.20 
0.91 
0.37 

51.24 

14.50 

0.00 
9.83 
7.80 
0.16 
0.63 

18.42 

8.4.16 

132.98 
/92 .46) 
40.52 

14.50 

1.35 
0.13 
1.48 

0.05 

0.09 

9 .82 

12.35 
3.75 
0 .34 
1.26 

27.66 

43.64 

84,16 

For K . S. Aiyar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of tho Board of Directors 

!CAI Firm Registration No. 100186W 

~.A~· 
Sachin A. Negandhi 
Partner 
Membership No.: 112888 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : April 24, 2024 

,~:,,~~v 
Chairman 
(DIN : 0663 984) 

Hemal Davda 
Chief Financial Officer 

~ 
Managing Director & CEO 
[DIN : 02994647) 

~ 
Kapil Seth 
Director 

[~ 3596866] 

Arja&rivedi 
Company Secretary 



Particulars 

NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Notes For the year 
ended 

31.03.2024 

For the year 
ended 

31.03.2024 

For the year 
ended 

31.03.2023 

For the year 
ended 

31 .03.2023 

(Rs. in lakhs) (USO in Lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (USO in l akhs) 

Income 

Revenue from operations 19 1,143.01 13.80 O.o? 0.00 
Other income 20 522.62 631 8622 1.07 

Total Income 1,CC~.63 20.11 86.29 1.07 

Expanses 

Employee benefits expense 21 555.60 6.71 206.77 2.56 
Technology El<Penses 22 838.30 10.13 729.24 9.05 
Finance cost 8.86 0.10 9.14 0.11 
Other expenses 23 637.59 7.69 311.45 3.86 
Depreciation and amortisation exPense 2 & 3 464.92 5.61 404.35 5.02 
Total Expenses 2,505.26 30.26 1,660.95 20.60 

Profit /(Loss) before tax (839.62) (10.14) (1,574.66) (19.53) 

Less : Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Total tax expenses 
Profit / (Loss) for the period (A) !839.62) (10.14! !1,574.66} (19.53} 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will be reclassified lo profit or 
Changes in foreign currency translation reserve 72.00 353.12 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit (925) (0.11) 1.32 0.02 
obligations 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period 62.75 (0.11) 354.44 0.02 
(Net ofTaxes) (8) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (776.87) (10.26) (1,220.22) (19.51) 
(A+B) 

Earnings per equity share ( Face Value Rs. 

• Basic & Diluted (Rs. / USO) 23 (0.48) (0.01) (1 .75) (0.02) 

Summary of material accounting policies 
Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss 

As per our report of even date attached 

For K. s. Aiyar A Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

;;J:'.'~''.'";;.:l 
Sachln A. Negandhl 
Partner 
Membership No.: 112888 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : Aprll 24, 2024 

K½:r~~hy 
Chairman 

[DIN : 06 2984) 

-~ Managing Director A CEO 

(DIN : 02994647] 

\.-\~~ 
Hemal Davda -
Chief Financial Officer 

Kapil Seth 
Director 
[DIN:03596866) 

~ 
Arjav1"rivedi 

Company Secretary 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CA.SH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENoeo MARCH 31, 2024 

P3rticufars Notes For the year For the year For the year For the year 
ended 31,03 .. 20.24 ended 31 .03.202' ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2023 

(Rs. In Lakh$) (USO In L>khs) (Rs, in Llkhs} (USO in l>khs) 

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX (839.62) (10.14) (1,574.66) (19.53) 

Add: Adjustments for : 

Deprecialion & Amorm;afion Exoenses 2&3 464.92 5.61 404.35 502 
Re•measuremen1 of delined benefits plans (9.25) (0.11 ) 
Fin~o.Cost 8.86 0.10 9.14 0. 11 

Less :. Adjusoncnt.s for : 

lnte1est income on bank deposits 20 (~22.62) (6.31) (llS.22) (1.07) 

OPC::RATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITA L CHAN GES (397.71) (10.8~) (1.241.38) (15.47) 

Adjustments for : 

Proceed or Deposit from Trading member I app1Ca1H 15 1.048.13 12.40 333.12 3.3b 
Trado ~ecefl/able (104.20) (1.25) 
Trade Payable• 14 (515.16) (6.40) 632.67 751 
Other manoal liabilil~s 16 (1n.221 (L'i2) (553,89) (7 62) 
Other financial ass.ets 0.13 0.71 
Other 0Jnet1t ass:els 10 (15.93) (0.17) (2.56) (0.0 1) 
Curren! Llll!!llbi'l~$ 3, Provbion::; 16~ 17 147.95 1.7◄ 51.94 0.52 

C,._SH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (459.0 1) (6.06) (785.39) (11.72) 

Direct Taxes paid (Net or Refunds) (57.38) (0.67) (4.14) (0.02) 

NET CASH FROM (\JSEO IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES· Totol (") {516.391 {6.731 {789.541 (11.74) 

B) CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIEs 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 2 &3 (397.94) (4.53) (976.52) ( 11 .11) 
lnvestmenl In fued deposits 4&7 (11.793.66) (140.90) 1.032.33 17.00 
Interest received 20 2637 0.37 10.SS 0.15 

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES · Total (B) (12,165.231 (145.06) 66.46 6.0• 

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from 1$$ue of Equ«y Shares 11A 16.000.00 192.36 
lnc,oase in SGf 116 (2.503.17) (30.11) 
Payment of Le~se Liability (12.19) (0.14) (10.62) (0.14) 

NET CASH FROM (USED 1N) FINANCING ACTIVITIES· T o,.1 (C} 13,484.65 162.12 {10.62) (0.14} 

Change• on account of com11u·sion of balances from fun.c.tlonlllll c.ur-rcncy to 72.00 353.12 
presentation cu!T41ncy 

NET INCREASE f (DECREASE} IN CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS {A•B•C) a '/5.03 10.35 (3&0.58) (5.55) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR • 808.37 9.8J 1,188.94 15.68 

CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR• 1683.39 20.19 1!08.37 9.83 

NET INCREASE J (DECREASE} IN CASH A.ND CASH EQUIVALENTS 875.02 10.36 {380.58! fS.8~ 

Reconciliation or cash o.nd c,3sh equivalents u per the <;Hh now atatement 

ca.-.h and cash eouivalents as per above oomnrise ot lhe tollo"-'ng 
Cash and cash equivalents 1.683.30 20.19 808.37 9.83 
Bank overdrafts 
Balances per statement of cash nows 1.683.39 20.19 808.37 9.83 

tJotu to Statement of Cash Fk>ws: 
1 The above Staterncnl h.Js been preoared under 1he •1ooi,ect Method· as st:t out n lhc 1i'ld AS - 7 on Statemt'!nt of Cash Flr:l•NS. 
~ The obov c Cosh FIOw exdude& eaeh ftow pert.,ioing to SGF 

3 Prevlou~ year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to c.onespond w:th Ule cunenl year cla,ssifr.alion / dlsclosure. 

As per our report or even Gate attached 

For K S. Aiyar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

~•r~•rt·10;t: - J . 
Fo,a:d on behalf of lhe Boord of Dilll<I~ 

~•r~~ Neeraj Kulslv .. lha Kapll Seth 

Sachi:n A. Ne9t5ndhl ~ 
PJrtner 
Membership No.: 112888 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : April 2◄, 202◄ 

Cl)oillnnan Managing Director a. CEO 
(OIN : 0663 84) (DIN : 0299-4647) 

,~~:[) 
Htrn~I Davda -
Chief financial Officer 

Director 

(0~96866) 

Nja~ edi 
Company Secretiry 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITEO 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

(A) Equity Share capital 

(B) 

Balance as at 01.04.2022 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31.03.2023 

Balance as at 01.04.2023 

Changes In equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31.03.2024 

Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as ~t April 1, 2022 

Profit /(Loss)for the year 

Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
through Other Comprehensive Income 

Contribution to SGF 

Share issue exoenses 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Bafance .:.s ::tt April 1, 2023 

Profit /(Loss)for the vear 

Changes on Foreign Currency Translatton Reserve 

through Other Comprehensive Income 

Contribution to SGF 
Share Issue expenses 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Balanc;e as at March 31, 2024 

As per our report of even date attached 

For K. S. Aivar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 100186W 

~ -A · N~-
sachin A. Negandhi 

Partner 

Membership No.: 112888 

Pl.1cc : Mumbai 

Date : April 24, 2024 

( Rs.in lakhs) (USO in lakhs) 

9,000 132.98 

9,000 132.98 

9,000 132.98 

16,000 192.36 

2s,ooo 32S.34 

Retained Earnings f,oreign Other Comprehensive Income Total 
Currency 

Translat.ion 

Reserve 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (USD Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (USD Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakh,) 
(5,116.90) (72.88) 672.64 (5.02) (0.07) (4,449.28) 

(1,574.66) (19.53) (1,574.66) 

353.12 - 353.12 

-

-
1.32 0.02 1.32 

(6,691.56) (92.42) 1,025.76 (3.70) (0.05) (5,669.50) 

(6,691.56) (92.42) 1,025.76 (3.70) (0.05) (5,669.50) 
(839.62) (10.14) - - (839.62) 

72.00 - - 72.00 

(2,503.17) (30.111 (2,503.17) 

- -
- - (9.25) (0.111 (9.25] 

(10,034.35) 1132.671 1,097.76 112.95) (0.16) (8,949.54) 

~-~•ooJ""""M ry, 
·-~·~ ..... ,.~,.., "'""""""·· "'""" 
Chai,,:,:: \ Man;iging Director & CEO Director 

(DIN: 066329841 [DIN : 029946471 [OIN:035968661 

\..\ ~~ ~ 
Hema! Davda 

~ 
ArjavTriCedi 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

(USD Lakhs) 

(72.95) 

(19.53) 

0.02 
(92 .46) 

(92.46) 

(10.14) 

(30.11) 

(O. ll) 
1132.831 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. Background and Summary of material accounting policies: 
The NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited (NICCL or the Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of 
NSE Clearing Limited (Formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation Ltd. (NSCCL)), was 
incorporated on December 2, 2016. It is set up to operate a clearing corporation as a unit in an 
International Financial Service Centre (IFSC) in India. 

During the FY 2020-21, the Government of India has notified International Financial Services Centres 
Authority (IFSCA) as a unified authority for the development and regulation of financial products, 
financial services and financial institutions in the International Financial Services Centre (IFSC) in India. 
Accordingly, w.e.f October 1, 2020 the operations of the Company are governed by the regulations 
issued by IFSCA from time to time. 

Summary of material accounting policies: 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements ("Ind AS financial statements"). These policies have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

a) Basis of preparation 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), 
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which 
are measured at fair values, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') (to the extent 
notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Amendment Rules. Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied and are consistent with those used in the previous year except where a newly 
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires 
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

The financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on April 
20, 2023. 

Historical cost convention: 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the following: 
- certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value, and 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fa ir value 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability. the Company considers the characteristics of the asset or liability which market 
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fa ir value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 



- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the entity can access at the measurement date; 
- level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
- level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

b) Foreign currency translation and transactions 

(i) Functional and presentation currency: 
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The functional 
currency of the Company is United State Dollars (USO). 

The financial statements are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company's presentation 
currency. It is necessary for the results and financial position of each individual entity included in the 
Group to be translated into the currency in which the Parent Company presents its financial statements. 
As the Holding Company presents its financial statements in INR, the Company's financial statements 
are translated into INR. 

(ii) Transactions and balances: 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at 
the dales of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fa ir value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fai r value was determined. Translation differences on assets and 
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation 
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and 
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

(iii) Translation to the presentation currency: 
The financial statements are translated from functional currency to presentation currency by using the 
following procedures: 
(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented (including comparatives, except Equity) shall 
be translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet; 
(b) income and expenses for each Statement of Profit and loss presented (including comparatives) 
shall be translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and 
(c) all resulting exchange differences shall be recognised in other comprehensive income as foreign 
currency translation reserve. 

The company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 
Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate 
to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid 
advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on account of adoption of this amendment was 
insignificant. 



c) Revenue recognition 

The Company recognises its revenue in accordance with IND AS 115- Revenue from customers. 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed 
as revenue are net or allowances, incentives, taxes and amounts col lected on behalf of third parties. 

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Company's activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking 
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. 

Revenue is recognised in the period when the service is provided as per arrangements/agreements 
with the customers. The sources of revenue are: 
(i) Clearing and Settlement charges and processing charges are recognized on accrual basis as and 
when the services are rendered.; 
(ii) Others - All other revenue is recognised in the period in which the service is provided. Income 
excludes applicable taxes and other levies. 

In respect of members who have been declared as defaulters by the Company all amounts (dues) 
remaining to be recovered, net of available security and insurance cover available if any, till the date of 
being declared as defaulters are written off as bad debts. All subsequent recoveries are accounted 
when received. 

Penal charges in respect of shortages due from the respective member is recognised in the Statement 
Profit and Loss as part of other revenue to the extent such charges are recoverable in the period of 
declaration of default. 

Insurance c laims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims become due and payable. 

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The transaction 
price is based upon the amount the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring of 
promised services to the customer after deducting allowances and discounts etc. Revenue excludes 
any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government. 

d) Income taxes 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income 
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any. 

The current income tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate based on amounts expected to be paid to the tax authori • 



Deferred income tax is provided in full , using the balance sheet approach, on deductible and taxable 
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the 
related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wi ll be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all 
taxable temporary differences. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are 
recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary 
differences and losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset 
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. respectively. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised as of now as there is tax exemption for ten years 
to IFSC companies. 

e) Impairment of assets 

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they 
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset"s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For 
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets 
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. Where an 
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount or the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the 
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately, unless the 
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation increase. 



f) Cash Flow Statements & Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items 
and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other 
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes. 

g) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of 
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional 
unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group 
holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore 
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. 

h) Investments and other financial assets 

(i) Classi fication: 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss), and 
- those measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in 
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the 
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity 
investment at fa ir value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt 
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

(ii) Measurement: 
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through 
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Debt instruments: 
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for 
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments: 

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on 
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging ----... 



relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of 
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ 
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective 
interest rate method. 

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are 
measured at fa ir value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the 
statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Equity investments (other than Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture): 
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's 
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive Income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income 
when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other 
gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) 
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

Equity Investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture): 
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the 
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy 
on impairment of non-financial assets is disclosed in Note e above. On disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets: 
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets 
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

(iv) De-recognition of financial assets: 
A financial asset is de-recognised only when 
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or 
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- The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de­
recognised. Where the company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised. 

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has not 
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the 
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

(v) Income recognition : 

Interest income 
Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating 
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

Dividends 
Dividends are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be reliably measured. 

i) Financial liabilities 

(i) Classification as debt or equity 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument. 

(ii) Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial 
recognition , they are classified as fa ir value through profit and loss. 

(iii) Subsequent measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efrective interest rate 
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iv) Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expires. 

j) Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 



on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enrorceable right 
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and 
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

k) Property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net or their residual 
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Assets Management Estimate 
of Useful Life in years 

Computer systems office automation 3 years 
Computer systems - others 4 years 
Furniture and Fixtures 5 years 
Electrical equipment 10 years 
Office equipment 4 to 5 years 
Clearing and Selllement Systems 4 years 
Telecommunication systems 4 years 

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the asset's useful life. 

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert 
which are higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the 
actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 
The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted on a prospective basis if 
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are 
included in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with 
reference to the date of additions / deductions. 

Fixed assets whose aggregate cost is Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition. 



I) Intangible assets (including under developments) 

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique 
software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following 
criteria are met: 

- it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use 
- management intends to complete the software and use or sell It 
- there is an abili ty to use or sell the software 
- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits 
- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the 
software are available, and 
- the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured. 

Directly attributable costs are capitalised as part of the software. 

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which 
the asset is available for use. 

Computer software is amortised over a period of 4 years. 

m} Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of 
financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabili ties unless 
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period . They are recognised initially at their fair 
value and de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 

n) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the 
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation to be settled at a future date. The discount rate used to 
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time 
is recognised as interest expense. 

o) Contingent Liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 



Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. If the inflow of economic benefits is 
probable, then it is disclosed in the financial statements. 

p) Contributed equity 

Equity shares are classified as equity. 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a 

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

q) Dividends 

Provision is made for any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the 

reporting period. 

r) Earnings per share 

(i) Basic earnings per share: 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 
- the profit attributable to owners of the company 
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 

bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year. 

(ii) Diluted Earnings per share: 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to 
consider: 
- the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 

shares, and 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming 
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

s) Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

As a lessee 
The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. Ind AS 116 defines a lease 
as a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right of use an asset (the underlying asset) for a 
period in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified 
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the 
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a 
term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low 
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line 

basis over the term of the lease. 



The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the 
commencement date on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying assets. 

As a lessor 
Lease for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms 
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is 
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, 
rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

t) Employee Benefits 

(i) Provident Fund: The Company registered with Regional Provident Fund Office, Ahmedabad, and 
both the employee and the employer make monthly contribution equal to 12% of the employee's basic 
salary respectively. 
(ii) Gratuity: Provisions are made for the defined benefit with respect to gratuity liability based on the 
present value of defined benefit obligation as per the actuarial valuation calculation. The present value 
is calculated using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in full in 
the other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur. 

(iii) Leave Encashment: Liability on account of Leave encashment is provided based on Actuarial 
Valuation at Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. 
(iv) Short term employee benefits are charged to revenue in the year in which the related service is 
rendered. 

u) Current versus Non-current classification and operating cycle 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenUnon- current 
classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected lo be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle i.e. 12 months; 
- Held primarily for purpose of trading; 
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle i.e. 12 months; 
- It is held primarily for purpose of trading ; 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
;;.., • -
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Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition 
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non­
current. 

v) Rounding of Amounts: 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs 
as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated. 

w) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, 
will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed 
information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with 
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 
Estimation of useful life of intangible asset refer Note 3 
Estimation of contingent liabilities refer Note 37 
Estimation of Impairment of Assets 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

x) Settlement Guarantee Fund (SGF): 
As per Regulation 31 (2) of IFSCA MI i Regulations 2021 , a Clearing Corporation shall maintain a 
Settlement Guarantee Fund corpus equivalent to at least the minimum required corpus as arrived at 
from the monthly stress value of USD 1 million, whichever is higher. 
In the event of a clearing member (s) failing to honour settlement commitments, the SGF shall be used 
to fulfil the obligations of that member and complete the settlement without affecting the normal 
settlement process. The entire corpus of the SGF has been contributed by NSE IFSC Clearing 
Corporation Ltd. This fund is represented by earmarked SGF investments. The income earned on such 
investments (net of TDS, bank charges, etc.) is credited to the SGF. Penalties and fines levied by the 
Clearing Corporation are transferred to SGF as Other Contributions. 

y) Recent accounting p ronounce ments: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year 
ended March 31, 2024 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards applicable to the Company. 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment 

Rs In lakhs 

Office Electrical Furniture 
Computer capital Right-Of-

Particulars Vehicle System - TOTAL Work In Use Asset s -equipments installations and fixtures 
Others Progress Building 

Gross carrying amount 

Openins as at 01.04.2022 14.41 9.88 45.61 151.09 220.99 109.98 
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Transfers - - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation 0.81 0.56 2.58 - 8.55 12.50 - 1.57 
Closing gross carrying amount 15.22 10.44 48.19 159.64 233.49 - 111.55 

Accumulated depreciation 

Opening as at 01.04.2022 11.71 4.57 30.04 54.88 101.21 - 21.75 
Depreciation charge during the period 1.65 0.99 9.11 - 37.72 49.46 7.93 
Disposals - - - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation (0.80) (0.52) (2.10) - (2.48) (5.90) - (6.34) 
Closing accumulated depreciation 12.SS 5.04 37.05 - 90.12 144.77 - 23.34 

Net carrying amount as at 31 .03.2023 2.67 5.40 11.13 - 69.51 88.71 - 88.21 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening as at 01.04.2023 15.22 10.44 48.19 159.64 233.49 - 111.55 
Additions 5.98 28.51 30.00 16.26 80.74 80.74 -
Disposals - (9.87) - - (9.87) (80.74) 
Transfers - - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation 0.18 (0.57) 0.58 - 1.92 2.12 - 0.68 
Closing gross carrying amount 21.38 0.00 77.28 30.00 177.82 306.48 - 112.23 

Accumulated depreciation 

Opening as at 01.04.2023 12.55 5.04 37.05 90.12 144.77 - 23.34 
Depreciation charge during the period 0.83 0.74 4.60 4.82 39.25 50.23 - 7.93 
Disposals (5.78) - (5.78) - -
Currency Fluctuation - - - (0.50) 
Closing accumulated depreciation 13.38 0.00 41.65 4.82 129.37 189.22 - 30.77 

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2024 8.00 0.00 35.63 25.18 48.45 117.25 81.45 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
Note 2 : Property, pl.>nt and equipment 

Particulars 
Office Electrical 

equipments installations 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening as at 01.04.2022 0.20 0.14 
Additions . 
Disposals 

Transrers 

Closing gross carrying amount 0.20 0.14 

Accumulated depreciation 

Opening as at 01.04.2022 0.17 0.07 
Depreciation charge during the period 0.02 0.01 
Disposals 

Closing accumulated depreciation 0.19 0.08 

Net carrying .>mount .>sat 31.03.2023 0,01 0.06 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening as at 01.04.2023 0.20 0.14 
Additions 0.07 -
Oisposals - (0.14) 
Transfers . 
Closing gross ca rrying amount 0.27 0.00 

Accumulated depreciation 

Opening as at 01.04.2023 0.19 0.08 
Depreciation charge during the period 0.01 0.01 
Disposals - (0.08) 
Closing accumulated depreciation 0.20 0.00 

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2024 0.07 0.00 

Furniture 

and fixtures 
Vehicle 

0.65 . 

. 

. 

0.65 . 

0.44 -
0.11 -

-
o.ss . 

0.10 . 

0.65 . 
0.34 0.36 

- . 
. 

0.99 0.36 

0.55 . 

0.06 0.06 
. . 

0.61 0.06 

0.39 0.30 

USO in Lakhs 

Computer Capital Right-Of-

System - TOTAL Work In Use Assets • 

Others Progress Building 

2.04 3.03 . 1.49 
. . 
. . 
- . . 

2.04 3.03 . 1.49 

0.77 1.44 . 0.32 
0.47 0.61 . 0.10 

. -
1.24 2.06 0.42 

0.80 0.97 - 1.07 

2.04 3.03 . 1.49 

0.19 0.97 0.97 . 

- (0.12) (0.97) . 
. 

2.23 3.88 (0.00) 1.49 

1.24 2.06 0.42 

0.47 0.61 - 0.10 
(0.08) - . 

1.71 2.58 - 0.52 

l 
0.52 1.30 (0.00) 0.97 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 3 ; Other Intangible assets 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Clearing and Intangible TOTAL 
Settlement Assets under 

Svstem development 
Gross carrying amount 
Opening as at 01.04.2022 881.19 280.40 1,161 .59 
Additions 982.16 952.47 1,934.64 
Disposals . (0.03) (0.03) 
Transfers . (982.16) (982.16) 
Currency Fluctuation 1.98 1.20 3.18 
ClosinQ Qross carrvino amount 1,865.33 251 .87 2,117.21 

Accumulated amortisation 
Opening as at 01.04.2022 489.07 . 489.07 
Amortisation charge during the period 346.96 . 346.96 
Disposals . . . 
Currency Fluctuation (2.40) . (2.40 
Closina accumulated amortisation 833.63 . 833.63 

Net carrvinq amount as at 31.03.2023 1,031 .71 251 .87 1,283.58 

Gross carrying amount 
Opening as at 01.04.2023 1,865.33 251.87 2,117.21 
Additions 551.00 398.68 949.68 
Disposals . (99.55) (99.55) 
Transfers . (551.00) (551 .00) 
Currency Fluctuation 10.55 10.55 
ClosinQ oross carrvino amounl 2.426.89 0.00 2.426.89 

Accumulated amortisation 
Opening as at 01.04.2023 833.63 . 833.63 
Amortisation charge during the period 406.74 . 406.74 
Disposals . . . 
Currency Fluctuation . 
Closino accumulated amortisation 1,240.37 . 1,240.37 

Net carrvinq amount as at 31.03.2024 1,186.51 0.00 1,186.51 

Note: 3.1 - Ageing for Intangible assets under progress (CWIP) as at March 31, 2024 & March 31 , 2023 is as 
follows: 

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a oeriod of 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

lvears 
Projects in proqress (CY) . . . 

Proiects temoorartlv suspended (CY\ . . 

Proiecls in oroaress /PY\ 215.41 36.46 . 
Proiecls temoorarilv susoended (PY) . . . 
Total . . 

Note : 3.2 • Significant estimate: Useful life of intangible assets 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Total 
Total 

. . 

. . 

. 251.87 

. . 

. . 

The Company has completed the development I procurement of software that Is used in its various business processes. As at 31 March 2024, 
the net carrying amount of this software was Rs. 1. 186.51 lakhs (31 March 2023 : Rs. 1,031.71 lakhs). The Company estimates the useful life of 
the software lo be 4 years based on the expected technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter or 
longer than 4 years. depending on technical innovations. 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 3 : Other intangible assets 

/USO in Lakhsl 
Particulars Clearing and Intangible TOTAL 

Settlement Assets under 
System development 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening as at 01.042022 11.60 3.71 15.31 
Additions 11 .95 11 .36 23.31 
Disposals - (0.00) (0.00) 
Transfers - (1 1.95) (11.95) 
Closing gross carrying amount 23.55 3.13 26.68 

Accumulated amortisation 

Opening as at 01.04.2022 6.45 - 6.45 
Amortisation charge during the period 4.50 . 4.50 
Disposals - - . 
Closing accumulated amortisation 10.96 - 10.96 

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2023 12.59 3.13 15.72 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening as at 01.04.2023 23.55 3.13 26.68 
Additions 6.61 4.78 11.39 
Disposals - (1.30) (1.30) 
Transfers - (6.61) (6.61) 
Closing gross carrying amount 30.16 0.00 30.16 

Accumulated amortisation 

Opening as at 01.04.2023 10.96 . 10.96 
Amortisation charge during the period 4 .91 . 4.91 
Disposals . . . 
Closing accumulated amortisation 15.87 . 15.87 

Net carrvina amount as al 31.03.2024 14.29 0.00 14.29 

Note: 3.1 • Ageing for Intangible assets under progress (CWIP) as at March 31 , 2024 & March 31, 2023 is as (USO. In lakhs) 
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total 
Projects in progress (CY) . . . . . 
Projects temporarily suspended (CY) . . . - . 
Projects in progress (PY) 2.68 0.45 3.13 
Projects temporarily suspended (PY) - . . . . 
Total . . . . . 
Note : 3.1 - Significant estimate: Useful life of in tangible assets 

The Company has completed the development / procurement of software that is used in its various business processes. As at 31 March 2024 
the net carrying amounl of this software was USO 14.29 lakhs (31 March 2023 : USO 12.59 lakhs). The Company estimates the useful life of the 
software to be 4 years based on the expected technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter or longer 
than 4 years, depending on technical innovations. 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

4 Other financial assets (non--current) Asat As at 31.03.2024 As.at As at 31.03.2023 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Non CurTo-nt bank balances 
{Rs. in Lakhs} !USO in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs} (USO in Lakh•} 

Fixed dc:Po:sit~ witt, maturity fOf"more man 12 montns 7,174.32 &;,05 2 64/.38 32.20 
7 174.32 8MS 26'7,38 32.20 

Others 
Security deposit for utfNties and oreni$e$ 9.23 0 11 9.10 0.11 
Interest Accrued on Sank Oeoosfls 335.02 4.02 65.75 0.80 

lli25 4 13 74.llS 0.91 

Tot.'.11 7,518.57 90,18 ~7Zl.ZJ JJ,11 

Investment • Settlement Guarantee Fund Mal As at 31 .03.2024 A.sat A• a.t 31 ,03.2023 
(Refer Note No. 11) 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

lRs. In Lakhs) {USO in Lakhs} {Rs. In Lakha} ,uso in Lakhs) 
CUITSnt accounts with B:.nk 81,11 UM ,4'7, 17 0.58 
F'tX~ Deposits with Sank 3,606.75 43.26 1,114 .86 13.56 
Interest accrued on SGF Foced Oeoosrts 128.64 1.54 27.20 0.33 
TOS on SGF FD lnlen,sl 2.61 0.03 2.11 0.03 
Total 3 825.11 45.87 1191.34 14.50 

A.$ at As ac 31.0J.2024 As al As at 31.03.2023 
31.03.202• 31,03.2023 

6 Trade ReceJvable 
Secured, considered ROQd 

lRs. in Lakhs} {USO in Lakhs} (Rs:. In Lakhs} (USO In Lakhsl 

Unsecured, conslderud q<Xld 

Havlno s~nincan1 Increase tn Credit Risk 
Crcdrt Imp.aired 
Rer:l!Nables from related parties (riet) 104.20 us 
(Refer note 37) 

104.20 1.25 
Less : Excected Credit Loss 
Total 104.20 1.25 

T d R hi hie AtH!!I Ill ra • ece • n • n • Particulars Trad• R iv ·'--'· A•in- Schedule as on 31.0-l.2024 
fR I LAkh •\ 

Outst:andlno for followlnn -rlods from due date of-~·· ent 
Unbilled loss than 6 6 months to 1 1,2years 2, 3year. More than3 Total 

months vi&ar vears 
'j\ Undlaout•d considered uood 11)4.20 104.20 
ii\ Undisnuted - considered doubtful 
iii\ Disouted - considered oood 
tvt 0lsnuted - considered doubtful 

Trade Receivable Aneinn 
Particulars Tracf.o Re ... •ivabJe A-in- Schedule as on 31.03.2024 

fUSO In Lakhs\ 

Outstandina for followlnn neriods from due date of "'3Vmant 
Unbilled Not Due Less thl.'ln 1 1-2 years 2...) years: More than 3 To~I 

vear -ars 
n UndiSDUled considered aood 1.25 1.25 
Ill Undisr..uted - consldcrod doubtful 
iiil Disnuted - considered ~ood 

IJfv\ Disou~ - considered doubtful 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

7 Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 31.03.2024 Asat As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (USO in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (USO in Lakhs) 
Balances with banks : 
Current accounts # 432.78 5.19 808.37 9.83 
Fixed Deposit with less than 3 month maturity 1,250.61 15.00 
Total 1,683.39 20.19 808.37 9.83 

# Includes margin money from members Rs 182.70 Lakhs (USD 2.19 Lakhs) (Mar 2023 Rs 308.21 lakhs USD 3.75 Lakhs) 

8 Bank balances other than Cash and Cash As at As at 31.03.2024 As at As at 
equivalents 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

{Rs. in Lakhs} (USO in Lakhs} {Rs. in lakhs} {USO in Lakhs} 
Fixed deposits with maturity for less than 12 months 7,908.01 94.85 641.29 7.80 
Total 7,908.01 94.85 641 .29 7.80 

As at As at 31.03.2024 As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

9 Other financial assets (Current) {Rs. in Lakhs} 
Others 

{USD in Lakhs} {Rs. in lakhs} {USD in lakhs} 

Security deposit for utilities and premises 
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 239.92 2.88 12.94 0.16 
Total 239.92 2.88 12.94 0.1 6 

10 Other Current Assets As at As at 31.03.2024 As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31 .03.2023 

{Rs. in Lakhs} (USO in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs} {USO in lakhs} 
Prepaid Expenses 9.01 0.11 23.94 0.29 
Other Advance recoverable # 36.41 0.44 3.93 0.06 
Balance with Government Authorities 21.07 0.25 22.69 0.28 
Advance to Employee 
Total 66.49 0.80 50.56 0.63 
# represents receivable from NSE Clearing Ltd.& National Stock Excnage of India 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

11 A) Share Capital As at As at 31.03.2024 As at 31 .03.2023 ~ at 31.03.2023 
31.03.2024 

!Rs. in Lakhsl jUSD in Lakhs) !RS. In Lakh•! jUSD in Lakhsl 
Authorised 

30,00,00,000 (Previous year: 1 s.00.00.000) Eauitv 30,000.00 NA 15,000.00 NA 
Shares of Rs. 1 o each 

30.000.00 NA 15.000 00 NA 

Issued, Subscribed and Pild·UP 
10,00.00,000 (Previous year: 9.00.00,000) EQuity 25,000,00 325.3" 9,000.00 132,98 
Shares of Rs 1 O each fully paid up 
Total 25,000.00 325.34 9,000 00 132.98 

Equity Share, 
The Company has only one class or equity shares having a par value of Rs.101- per share. Each holder of equity shares 1s entit led to one 
vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholder in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting except In the case of Interim dividend. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares wil be enhtled to receive rema,n,ng assets of the Company, after 
distribution of al preferential amounts. The distribution wiN be in proportion to the number of equny shares held by the shareholder 

Shares ,n respect of each class 1n the Company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by 
subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate 

Equity Sharoo • 
Name o f the Company As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 

No. of Shares I ¾ holdina No. of Shares I % holdina 
NSE Cleanno Limited & Its nominees 2s,oo.oo,ooo I 100.00% 9,00.00.000 I 100.00% 

Total 25,0o,oo.ooo I 100.00% 9.00.00.000 I 100 00% 

Details of Eau1ty Shareholder holding more than 5% share in the Company (No OI Shares): 
Name of t ho Company Ae at 31.03.2024 As et 31 .03.2023 

No. of Shares I % holdina No. of Shares I % holdino 
NSE Clearina Limited & its nominees 25 oo 00,000 I 100.00% 9.00.00.000 I 100 00% 

Tobi ! 25,00,00,000 I tOO.OO')b 9,00.00.000 I 100.0~ 

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash & shares bought back during the period or five 
years immediately preceding me reporting date • Nil 

A reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 
No. of Shares (Rs .) No. of Shares (Rs.) 

At the beginning of the Period 9.00,00,000 90.00,00,000 9,00,00,000 90,00,00.000 
Add: Issued during the Year 16,00,00,000 1,60,00,00,000 . . 
At the end of the Period 25,00,00,000 2.50.00.00,000 9.00.00.000 90.00.00.000 

Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contract or commitments for sale of shares or disinvestments, 
There are no unpaid calls from any Director or Olficers 
As per International Financial Services Centres Authonty (Market Infrastructure Institutions) Regulations, 2021 notified on 12th 
April 2021 regulation 14 (1) Networth Requiremenl 
•A recognised market infrastructure institution shall have net worth of at least USD 3 milhons at all times: 

Share held bv oromotors at tho end of tho porlod 
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during 

the period 
NSE Cleanna Limited & its nominees (31 03 202.i) 25,00,00,000 10000% 1n 78% 
NSE aeanna Limited & its nominees (31.03 2023) 9,00,00.000 100.00% 0.00% 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

11 (B) Other Equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings Foreign Other Comprehensive Income Total 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (USO Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (USO Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (USO Lakhs) 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 (5,116.90) (72.88) 672.64 (5.02) (0.07) (4,449.28) (72.95) 

Profn /(Loss )for the year (1,574.66) (19.53) . . (1,574.66) (19.53) 

Changes in Foreign Currency Translalion . . 353.12 . 353.12 . 
Reserve through Other Comprehensive Income 

Contribution to SGF . . . . 
Share issue expenses . . . . 
Olher Comorehensive Income . . . 1.32 0,02 1.32 0.02 
Balance as at March 31 2023 (6 691.56 (92.42) 1 025.76 (3.70) (0.051 (5 669.50 (92.46 

Balance as at Aoril 1, 2023 (6 691.56 (92.42 1,025.76 (3.70) (0.051 (5,669.50 (92.46 
Profit /(Loss )for the year (839.62 (1014 . . (839.62) (10 .1 41 

Changes in Foreign Currency Trans la lion . . 72.00 . 72.00 . 
Reserve through O!her Comprehensive Income 

Conlribulion to SGF (2,503. 17 (30.11 . (2,503.17) /30.111 
Share issue expenses . . . . 
Other Comorehensive Income . . (9.25) (0.11 (9.25) 10.1 1) 
Balance as at March 31 2024 (10 034.35) (132.671 1,097.76 (12.951 (0.16 (8,949.54] /132.831 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 202◄ 

12 As per International f inancial SeNices CenlresAuthority (Martel l.nfr3s1nJcture lnsri tutlons) Regulations, 2021 nabfied on 121h April 2021 Rogulation~t on SettJemenl Gc.,o:1r<tM"1tee F"und: 
{1) A recognised clearing corpora.lion shall est~blish and maintain a Settlement Guarantee Fund 10 gvarantGo the settlement or trades cxceutcd on a slodt exchange. 
(2) The fund $h;lll have a corpus equivalent to ot k,ast the mininum required corpus as arrived al from the rrionthty stre5s test value or USO 1 miltbn. whlchev~r Is h~her. 
(3) In the evcnl of a recognised clearing member failing to honour its settJement obligaoons, the tund shaU be utJlized lO oomplere suctl settlement. 

13 

14 

(4) The cotpus or I11e n.md shalt be adequate tomee1 the settlement obligations arising on aCCOtJnt of failure or clearing member(s). 
(5) The sulf,aency 01 Ille corpus of lhe fund shall be 1ested by wsy of periodic slress les1s, in the manner specified by lhe Aulhorily. 
(6) A recognised ciearing corporation shall evotve a detailed framework for the settlement guarantee fund, subject to approval or the Authority. 

Details of Settlement Guar~ntee Fund (SGF) are as follows : 

As al 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.20:U As at 31 .03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

!Rs. In lakhs} {USO In Lakhs} {Rs. In Lakhs} (USO in Lakh$} 
company's own contribution a Interest receiveo on 3,688.64 44,24 1,158.87 14 10 
lnvestmenis· 
Penahy colected lrom members 7.83 0 .09 5.27 0.06 
Interest accrued on SCF Fi><ed Oepo:iil:; 128-6<1 1.54 27.20 0.33 
Total 3 825.12 45.88 1 191 .34 14.50 

• Ou ring the year ended March 31, 2024, Company's owr1 conlribulion inclldes conlributions ol Rs . 2503.17 lakhs: (USO 30, 10,800) (Rs NII (USO Nil) m.3de during provlou$ ye.or 2022· 
23). lnte,est received on SGF Fixed Oepo.c;itP.s nf Rs 123 64 L3khs (USO 1.54) (Rs. 27 .20 l~khs (USO 0.33 ~kh.s) in previous year 2022·23) and bobneo movement in INR amounts i& 
on account of currency fluctuahon. 

As at 31 ,03,2024 

Provision {Non Current) 
Employee benefits obllg~tion 

{Rs. In Lakhsl 

Provision ror Grau.i1y 47.84 
Provision for v•uiable pay ~nd orhflr allowances 
Tobi .. 7.8" 

Trade Pay,ble A$ :lt 31.03.2024 

{Rs. In Lakhsl 
Tra<le Payable ro Micro and Small Emerpnses (Rerer 10.93 
Nole No. 27) 
Trade Payable lO olhcf 1hcln Micro and Small 
Enterprises 
Trade Payable to Related Party {Reier Note No. 37) 

Total 

Payablo to Related P3rty 
NatiORal Stock E.lCchange of India Limited 
NSE Clea,lng Llmiled 
NSE IFSC llm1led 
NSE IT Limited 
NSE Indices Umi"ted 
Tot~I 

Particubrs 

I\ MSME 
iii Others 

'lln Ofsnutcd Dues - MSME 
'Iv\ Dis.outed Dues - Others 

Trade Pavables Aoeina 
Particulars 

llil MSME 
ltii\ Others 

im Dis.outed Duoc - MSU E 
iv\ Disoutcd Dues - Others 

Trade Pavablu Aoelna 
Particulars 

,p MSME 

Ii\ Others 
jjjl Oisouted Dues • MSME 

l tivl Oisoutod Duo& - Others 

Trade Pa ables A ein 
Partjculars 

Unbilled 

Unbilled 

Unbillecf 

UnblUod 

102,81 

185.75 

299.50 

8.59 
14.62 

159.66 
2.89 

185.75 

5.76 
252.53 

0 .07 
3 .02 

7 .50 
807.16 

0.09 

9.82 

As at 31.03.2024 As al 31 ,03,2023 As at 31.03.2023 

{USO In Lakhs} (Rs. In Lakhs} {USO in Lakhsl 

0.57 7,03 0.09 
3.65 0.04 

0,57 10.68 0.13 

A.& at 31 .03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 A$ .1t 31 .03,2023 

{USO In Lakhs} {Rs, in Lakhs} {USO In Lakhsj 
0.13 7.50 0.09 

1.26 160,36 1.95 

2. 12 046.60 7.87 

3.51 814.66 9 ,91 

0.18 14.04 0.17 
15.27 0.19 

1,91 617.'19 7.51 
0.03 
2.12 646.80 7,87 

Trade Pavable A"'(nn Schedule as on 31 .03.2024 
Outsbndina for followina neriods from due date of na ment 

Nol Due Less than 1 year 1,2 years 2.J years Moreth.'ln3 
"'ears 

1.31 3.86 
J0.81 5.25 

Trade PnvabSe Anln ... Schedule as on 31 .03.2024 
Outstandina for followlnn n11rlods from due date of n:'I menl 

Not Due Less lhan 1 year 1-2 years 2,3 Y••n1 More than 3 
vears 

0,02 0.05 
0.37 0.06 

Trade Pavab&c A..,i...,. Schedule•• on 31.03.2023 
Outslandlna for followfnn ouor lods from due date of oa ment 

Not Due les.s than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
vt.ars 

Trade Pa able A i n Schedule as on 31.03.2023 
Outstandin for followin erlods from due date of a ment 

NotOue Less than 1 year 1"2 yeara 2-J years More ttlctn J 
ears 

lRs i n Lakhs\ 

Total 

10.93 
268.59 

(USD in Lakhs' 

Total 

0.13 
3,45 

/Ra 111 Lakh•1 s 

Total 

7.50 
807. 16 

USO In Lakhs 

Total 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

15 Deposits (Unsecured- Current) 

Security Deposit from Clearing Members 
Securi ty Deposit from Clearing Banks 
Total 

16 Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 
Margins From Members 
Other liabilities 
Total 

17 Provision (Current) 
Provisions for Leave encashment 
Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for variable pay and other allowances 
Total 

18 Other Current liabilities 
Statutory Dues Payable 
Income received in advance 
Total 

As at 31.03.2024 As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

As at 
31.03.2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) ·uso in Lakhs (Rs. In Lakhs} (USO in Lakhs) 

1,313.22 
750.37 

2,063.59 

15.75 
9.00 

24.75 

1,015.46 

1,015.46 

As at 31.03.2024 As at As at 
31.03.2024 31 .03.2023 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 'USO in Lakhs (Rs. In Lakhs) 
182.70 2.19 308.22 

3.4 7 0.04 0.17 
186.17 2.23 308.39 

12.35 

12.35 

As at 
31 .03.2023 

(USO In Lakhs) 
3.75 
0.00 
3.75 

As at 31.03.2024 As at As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 'USO in Lakhs (Rs. in Lakhs} (USO in Lakhs) 

17.70 0.21 4.69 
4.07 0.05 0.36 

120.01 1.44 22.35 
141.78 1.70 27.40 

As at 31.03.2024 As at As at 
31 .03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 'USO in Lakhs (Rs. in Lakhs) 
89.59 1.07 103.98 

1.55 0 .02 
91.14 1.09 103.98 

0.06 
0.01 
0.27 
0.34 

As at 
31.03.2023 

(USO in Lakhs) 
1.26 

1.26 
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19 Income from Operations 

Clearing Settlement Charges-NSE 11=sc 
Annual Membership Fees 
Member Application Fees 
Total 

Major Customer 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
1,070.17 

71.60 
1.24 

1 143.01 

For the year For the year For the year 
ended 31.03.202'4 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2023 

(USO in Lakhs) 
12.92 
0.86 
0.02 

13.80 

(Rs in lakhs) (USO in Lakhs) 

Revenue from one major customer (related party) is Rs 1070.17 Lakhs (USD 12.92 Lakhs) (PY NIL) which is more than 10 % of the total 
revenue of the company 

Revenue Recognised 

Point in time 
Over the time 

Total 

20 Other Income 

Interest income on bank deposits 
Total 

21 Employee benefits expense 
Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other fund 
Staff welfare Expenditure 
Total 

22 Technology Expenses 

Repairs & Maintenance - Computers 
Software expenses 
Total 

23 Other expenses 

Bank Guarantee Commission 
Fees and Subscription 
Professional Fees 
Director Sitting Fees 
Repairs & Maintenance - Building 
Electricity expenses 
Travelling Expense 
Profit/ Loss of Exchange Fluctuation 
Payment to auditors 
Recruitment Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Loss on Scrap Sale of Assets 
Total 

Note : 
Payment to Auditor 
As Auditor 
Statutory audit 
Llmlied review ror half yearly result 
In other Capacity 
Certification Mailers 
Out of Pocket 

otal 

For me year ended 
31.03.2024 

(Rs In lakhs) 

1.143.01 

1,143.01 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
522.62 
S22.62 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
529.12 

15.80 
1068 

555.60 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

(Rs In lakhs) 
645.53 
192.77 
838.30 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

(Rs i n Lakhsl 
122.47 
194.33 
78.39 
99.08 
11.24 
11.88 
54.57 

4.45 
15.10 
40.98 

5.10 
637.59 

3.50 
0.30 

0.50 
0.15 
4.45 

0.00 

for the year 
ended 31.03.2024 

(USO In lakhs) 

13.80 

13.80 

For the year 
ended 31.03.2024 

(USO in Lakhs) 
6.31 
6.31 

f or the year 
ended 31.03.2024 

(USO in Lakhs) 
6.39 
0.19 
0.13 
6.71 

For the year 
ended 31.03.2024 

(USO In lakhs) 
7.80 
2.33 

10.13 

For the year 
ended 31.03.2024 

(USO In Lakhs) 
1.48 
2.35 
0.95 
1.20 
0.14 
0.14 
0.66 

0.05 
0.18 
0.49 
0.06 
7.70 

0 .04 

0.00 

0.01 
0.00 
0 .05 

For the year For the year 
ended 31.03.2023 ended 31 .03.2023 

(Rs in Lakhs) (USO in Lakhs) 

For the year For the year 
ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2023 

(Rs in Lakhs) (USO in Lakhs) 
86.22 1.07 
86.22 1.07 

For the year For the year 
ended 31.03.2023 ondod 31.03.2023 

(Rs in l akhs) (USO in lakhs) 
198.17 2.46 

4.31 0.05 
4.29 0.05 

206.77 2.57 

For the year For the year 
ended 31.03.2023 ended 31 .03.2023 

(Rs in Lakhs) (USO in lakhs) 
590.95 7.33 
138.30 1.72 
729.24 9.05 

For the year For the year 
ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2023 

(Rs in Lakhs) (USO in lakhs) 
37.54 0.47 
69.28 0.86 
62.14 0.77 
55.36 0.69 
9.74 0.12 

10.75 0.13 
25.00 0.31 
10.83 0.13 
3.21 0.04 

20.14 0.25 
7.46 0.09 

311.45 3.86 

2.00 0.02 
0.90 0.01 

0.25 0.01 
0.06 - ~c_C C 
3.21 d. 

: 
4-lo ' 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to flnanclaJ statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

24 Earnings per share 

"b bl Ba.slc earninris ner share are comoutod bv dcv1dino orofit or loss attn uta e to A(1u1tv shareholders of the Como.any bv the weiohted 
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2024 For the year ended 31st March 2023 

(Rs. Lakhsl !USO Lakhsl IRS. Lakhsl IUSO Lakhs) 
Profil allributa.ble to the equity holders al the 
company us-ed 1n calculating basic earnings per 
share and diluted earninos oer share 
Profit / I Lossl Before Tax 1839.621 110.141 11574 66\ 11953 
Tax on above -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax for the period 1839.621 110.141 (1.574.66) (19.53 
Weighted average number of equity shares used 17,33,87,978 
as the denominator in calculating basic and diluted 

17,33,87,978 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000 

earninns ner share 
Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted) 

IIRsJ U5D1 
(0.48) (0.01) (1.75) (0.0Z) 

The Company does not have any outstanding Clllutlve poIen11a1 equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted eam,ng per shaIe of the 
Company remain the same. 

25 Deputed Personal Cost 
Salaries, Wages & Allowances also includes the deputahon expenses in respect of the employees or Naltonal Siad< Exr.hange o/ India 
Limited (NSEIL), NSE Clearing L1m1ted and NSE Indices Limited. 

26 Segment Reporting 

Operallng segments a,e reported in a mannec consistent with the Internal rep0ttlng provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
('"COOM") of the Company The CODM. who is responsible for allocating resoureos and assessing pt>lformonce of the operating •egmenls, 
has been ldentified as th& CEO of the Company. The Company ope<ales only In one Business SGQmoot i e, operations compnse of onfy 
facilitating Clearing & Settlement ITT securities and 1he activities incidental lheret.o within India or global, hence does not have any reportable 
Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operaltng Segments• 

27 Trade payables include outstanding amounts of Rs. 10 93 Lakhs {USO 0.13 Lakhs) {Previoos Year· Rs. 7.50 Lakhs (USO 0.09 Lakhs) 
(including interest or Rs. Nil , (Previous Year Rs Nil) payable to Miao, Small & Medium Enterprises. Total outstanding dues 10 Micro, Small 
& Me<lium Ente,prises have been aeterm,nea 10 the extent sueh parties have been ldenlJfied on the oasis of 1nformat1on available with the 
Company. 

28 AS at Maren 31 . 2024 the Company does not have any pendtng ht1gat1ons wh1Ch would impact its financiaf position. (Pre..,ious Year Nil} 

29 a) In accordance with relevant provisions or Companies Acl. 2013, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivauve 
contracts as at March 31 , 2024 (Previous Year Nil) 

b) There is Rs. Nil (PY Rs. NII) Loans, Guarantees, Investments under seclton 186 ol the Compan,es Acl. 2013 or m nature of loans granted 
to promoters, d irectors, KMPs and the related parties. 

30 For the year 2023-24 the company is not required to transfer any amount into the Investor Education & Protection Fund as required under 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 (Previous Year Nil) 

31 The Company's ta, jurisdiction is India .The Company is eligible for dedvction u/s SOLA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 rrom its businoss 
income of an amount equal to 100% of such income for any 10 consecutwe assessmenl years oot of 15 years, beginning with the 
assessment year re levant to the previous year in which SEBI perm1ss1on was granted Aocordingly. the benefrt u/s BOLA of lhe Ael of 100% 
deduction or business profit is availat>le for any 10 consecutive years from the AY 2017-18 to AY 2031-32. De/erred tax asset IS recognised 
ba$ed on reasonable certainty. 

32 Pursuant to MCA Notification dated January 04, 2017, Section 135 - Corporate Social Respons,bilily of Companies Act 2013, shall not apply 
for a period o f live years from the commencement of business ol a specified IFSC public company. Company is making losses in current 
year end also incurred losses in the previous years. Acco,dingly, Section 135 is not applicable to the oornpany for the financial year 2023-
24 

33 During tho FY 2020-21 , Nauonaf Stack E.xcttange \NSE) and Singapore Stock Exchange (SGX) had entered In to a collabo<alion agreement 
to cement the key 1erms rot operabona!i:s.fng the NSE IFSC-SGX Connect which WIii brcng together international and Gujarat lntemauonaJ 
Finance Tee City (GIFT} participants to aeate a b igger liquidity pool for Nifty Prodvcts in Gift City and to develop the infrastructure ror the 
connect and ensure member readiness prior to its imptementahon Further the Company on March 28. 2022 ha.s enter&d into an operatlonal 
agrooment wilh SGX India Connect IFSC Private Limited, S1n9aporo Exchange Derivatives Clearing limited (SGX OC) and NSE IFSC 
Limited to operationalise the NSE IFSC-SGX Connect. As per this operational agreement. Company is required to provide collateral to SGX­
OC for the due performance by the Company or ,ts clearing obligations In respect of the trades placed by SGX-SPV on NSE IFSC For this 
Company has availed Bank Guarantee facility from Standard Chartered Bank to the tune of USD 50 m1111on upto March 31.2024. NSE IFSC, 
SGX Connect has boon launched on July 29, 2022. Further os informed by SGX lo its members on April 17. 2023 that full-scale operation of 
the NSE IX-SGX GIFT Connect ("Connect") with the transition of SGX Nifty derivatives to NSE tFSC, all US dollar denominated Nifty 
derivatives contraas staned eicluslvely trading on NSE IFSC w e.r. July 03, 2023 

34 The Company received Show Cau•e Not,.,., (SCN) on 21 .10.2022 for non-ooh1evement of positive Net Foreign Exchange (NFE) during the 
firSt blOd< of rive years as one on the condit,on for Letter of App,ovol (LOA) issued by SEZ Authonty The Oevelopme<1t Commissioner after 
considering the Company's submissions and personal hearing, passed an order daied 22.05.2023 levying a nominal penalty of Rs.10,000/­
(USD 121.32) SEZ (Second Amendment) Rules 2023 dated 27 04 2023 has new oxempted entities 1n IFSC from appi;cabtlity ol prov;sion• 
of positive NFE and the Development Commissioner has taken cognizance or the same while passing the said order. Based, on 1he above 
facls and circlnlstances and in view of expiring of LOA on June 01 , 2023, the Company has made a payment of Rs. 10,000/- (USO 121 .32) 
lowords penally and fi led an appeal with the office of 0 11octor General of Foreign Trade (New Delhi) on May 27, 2023. The same was 
intimated to the Sr Development Commissioner on May 29, 2023. Basis the intimation about the appeal against the order, the SEZ authority 
has extended LOA fa< continued operehon under the SEZ-scheme 10< a period of four years 1111 June 01 , 2027. 

35 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 whieh would impact the contributions by the Company towards 
Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry or Labour and EmploymenI has released drart rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on 
November 13, 2020, and ha~ invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Minist,y, The Company will 
~sess the impact and ,t~ valuation onoe the subject ,ulos aro notiflod and will give appropriate impoct in its financial statements in the 
penoa In which, tile Code becomes effecwe alld the related rules to detocmine the financial impact are published. 



NSE IFSC Clea ring Corporation Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31St March 2024 

36 i) Employee Benefits 

(i) Provident Fund: During the current year the company is registered with Regional Provident Fund Office, Naroda, 
Ahmedabad, and both the employee and the employer make monthly contribut ion equal to 12% of the employee's basic 
salary respectively. 

(ii) Superannuation: Superannuation benefits for employees designated as chief managers and above are covered by group 

policies with the Life Insurance Cotporation of Indi a maintained by the Ultimate Holding Company. The contribution for the 

year is reimbursed to the Ultimate holding company is charged to re,enue. There are no o ther obligations other than the 
annual contribution payable. 

(iii) Gratuit y: Provisions are made for the defined benefit with respect to gratuity liabi lity based on the present value of defined 

benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets as per the actuarial valuation calculation. 

(iv) Leave Encashment: Liability on account of Leave encashment is provided based on Acturial Valua tion at Balance Sheet date. 

(v) Short term employee benefits are charged to revenue in the year in which the related service is rendered 

Provision 
Lon!! • term Short • term 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03,2023 
(Rs, In (USO In (Rs. In (USO In (Rs. In (USO In (Rs. In 

lakhs! lakhsl lakhsl lakhs) lakhs) lakhs) lakhsl 
Provision for employee benefits 
Medical benefits 
Provision for Leave Travel allowance 5.36 0.06 
Provision for gratuity 47.73 0.57 6.02 0.07 3.63 0.04 
Provision for leave encashmen l 17.55 0 .21 

47.73 0.57 6.02 0.07 26,54 0.32 

Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind As 191 on Employee Benefit as notified under Rule 3 ol the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

Defined Benefit Plan : 

1.15 
0.20 
4.36 
5.70 

a) Provident Fund & Pension Fund: Company has conlnbuled Rs 13.46 laklls (USO o 16 Lakhs) (Previous Year Rs 3.48 lakt>s (USO 0.04 Lakhs)) towards 
Provident Fund and Rs. 1.59 lakhs (USO 0.02 Lakhs) (Previous Year Rs. 0.60 lakhs (UOS 0.01 Lakhs)) towards Pet1s1on Fund during the year ended 
Marer, 31. 2024 to EmJ)loyee Provident Fll'IO Orgar1isation 

b) Groturty- The company proVldes for gratuity for employees as per Payment of Gratutly Ac~ 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a penod 
of 5 years are eligfble for gratuity, The amount of Gratuity is payable on retiremenVtellTlination of the emplyea·s last drawn basic salary per month 
mullIphed for the number ol years of service The gratuity plan is a non funded plan and the company makes provision on the basis of Actuarial 
Valuation. 

(USO In 

lakhs) 

0.01 
0.00 
o.os 
0.06 



A Balance Sheet 

(I) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sh«Htt and the movements iri the net defined 
benefit obligation over the year are as follows: 

Current Current Year Previous Previous 
Year 31 .03.2024 Year Year 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In UDS) 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In 
lakhs) UDS) 

Liability at the beginning of the year 6.21 0.07 13.14 0.16 
Interest cost 046 0.01 0.90 0.01 

Current Setvke Cost 383 0 05 2 45 003 
Liab4ity transferred 32.87 0.39 092 0.01 

Benefits Pai<J (9.86) (0.12) 

Actuarial (G~iM)ll o•~•• nn Ohlfo~ti1Jn< - Duo lo 
Change in Demographic Assumpbons 

Actuarial (Gain.s)/Losses on Obligahons - Due to 0.66 0.01 (0.32) (0.00) 
Actuarial (Gains)/losses on Obligations - Due to 7.33 009 (1 02) (0.01) 
Llablllly at the end of the year 51.35 0.62 6.21 0.08 

(ii) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements In the fair value or plan assets over 
the year are as follows: 

Current Current Year Previous Previous 
Year 31.03.2024 Year Year 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In UDS) 31 .03.2023 31 .03.2023 
(Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs} (Rs. In 

. 0 C 

Fai r Value of plan assets at m e beginning of the ye, 
Interest tncome 

Expected retum on plan assets -
Contnbutions 

Transfer from other oomoanv 
Benefits paid 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 

Fall' Value of plan assets at the end of the year 

(Ill) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows; 

Current Current Year Previous Previous 
Yea, 31.03.2024 Year Year 

31 .03.2024 (Rs. In UDS) 31 .03.2023 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In {Rs. In lakhs) (R.s. In 
lakhs) U0S) 

Fair value or plan assets as at the end of the year 
Liability as at the end of the ye;.1r (51 35) (062) (6.21) (008) 

Net (liability} / asset (61.35) (0.62) (6.21) (0.08) 

{iv) Balanco Shoot Roconclllatfon 

Current Current Year Previous Year Previous 
Year 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 Year 

)1 ,03,, 2024 {R• . In U0S) (Rs. In lakha) 31.03. 202;) 

(Rs. In {Rs. In 
lakhs) UDS) 

Opening Not Liability 6.21 0.08 13. 14 0.16 
Expenses Recognl2ed in Statement of Profit or Loss 4.29 0.05 3 35 0.04 
Expenses Recognized In OCI 7Jl9 0 10 ( 1 34) (002) 

Net (Liabillty)/Asset Transfer in 32.87 0 .39 0.92 0.01 
Benfil paid by the Company - (9.86) (0.12) 
Employe<s Contnbvtion 

Amount recogn ised In the Balance Sheet 51.36 0.62 6.21 0.08 



B Statement of Profit & Loss 

(i) Not lntorMt Co~t for Cu,,.ent Period 

Current Current Year Prevlou5 Previous 
Year 31.03.2024 Year Year 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In UDS) 31.03.2023 31 .03.2023 
(R10. In (Rs. in li khs) (Rs. In ....... un<: 

Interest Cost 0.46 001 0.90 0.01 
lntorost Income 

Net Interest Cost for Current Period 0.46 0.01 0.90 0,01 

(ii) E,;_pen.ses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 

Cunent Current Yeair Previous Previous 
Yeu 31.03.2024 Year Year 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In UOS) 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 
(R.s. In (Rs. in lakhs) (R$. In 
lakhs) UOS) 

C\Jrrent Service cost 3.83 0.05 2.45 0.03 
Net Interest Cost 0.46 0.01 0.90 0.01 
E>oenses recoantsed in the Statement of Prom & L 4.29 0.05 3.35 0.04 

(Iii) Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 

Current Current Year Previous Previous 
Year 31.03.2024 Year Year 

Jt.03.2024 (Rs. In UOS) 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In 
lakhs) UDS) 

Expected rntum on plan assets 

Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 7.99 0.10 (1 .34) (0.02) 
Net tlncomeUExoenso for the Period Recoanized In 7 .99 0.10 11 .34 10.021 

C Fair value of plan assets at the Balance Sheet Date for defined benefit obligations 

Current Current Year Previous Previous 
Year 31.03.2024 Year Year 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In UOS) 31 .03.2023 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In 
lakhs) UOS) 

Insurer Managed Funds -
Total 

0 Sensitivity Analysis 

Current Current Year Previous Previous 
Vear 31.03.2024 Vear Yea, 

31 .03.2024 (Rs. In U0S) 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In 
lakhs) U0S) 

Projected Benefit Obflgation oo Current ASS\Aflptions 51 .35 0 .62 6.21 008 

Delta Effect or + t % Cnange tn Rale or Discounting (3.13) \0.04) (052) (001) 

Della Effect of -1% Change In Rate of D,scounbng 3.51 0.04 0.60 0.01 

Delta Etfecl of +1% Change ,n Rafe ol Salary Increase 3.39 0.04 058 001 
Delta Effect of -1% Change n Rate ol Salary Increase (3.08) (0.04) (0.51) (0.0 1) 
Delta Effect of +1°A Change in Rate of Employee Turne (0.85) (0.01) (0.20) (0.00) 

Delta Effect of +1% Chanae in Rate or Emo-'ovee Turno 0.92 0.01 0.22 0.00 

E Maturity Analysis 

Projected Benefit pay;ible in Future Years from the Cun-ent Current Year Previous Provious 
date of reporting Year 31.03.2024 Year Year 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In UDS} 31.03.2023 31 .03.2023 
(Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In 
lakhs) UDS) 

1st Following Year 3.61 0.04 0 20 000 
2nd Following Year 6.47 0 .08 0 37 0.00 
3rd Following Year 4.57 0 .05 0.36 0.00 
4th Following Year 4.87 0 .06 0.64 0.01 
5th Following Year 4.SO 0.06 0.66 0.0, 

Sum or Years 6 to 10 24.C6 0 .29 2.97 0 .04 

F Signlflc.ant actuarlal assumptions are as follows: 

Current Previous Year 
Year 31.03.2023 

31.03.2024 (Rs. In lakhs) 
(Rs. In 
lakhsl 

Discount Rate 7.19% 739% 

Rate of Retum on Plan A~ets N.A. N.A 
Salary Escalation 10.00% 1000% 

Allrition Rate 12.00% 12.00% 



Related Party 
In compliance with Ind AS 24 - "Relaled Party Oiselosures·. as notified under Rule 3 of me Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and Amendment Rules required disclosures are given in the table below: 

37 <al Names of the related oarties and related oartv refationshio 

Sr. No. Related Partv Nature of Relatlonshlo 
1 National Stock Exchanoe of India Limited The Ultimate Holdina C-Omoanv 

2 NSE CleariO<l limited Holdina Comoanv 

3 NSE Investments Limited Fellow Subsldiaiy of Holding Company 

4 NSE IFSC Limiled Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company 

5 NSEIT Limited Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary of Holding Company 

6 NSE Data & Analvlics limited Fellow Subsidiarv's Subsidiarv of Holdina Comoanv 

7 NSE lndice:; Limited Follow Subsldiaf"I s Subsidiary of Holdina Company 

8 NSE lnfotech Services Limited Fellow Subsldiarv s Subsidiarv of Holdina comoanv 

9 NSE Academv Limited Fellow Subsidiarv s Subsidiarv of Holdina Comoanv 

10 NSE.IT IUSI Inc. Fellow Subsidiarv s Subsidi='s Subsidiarv of Holding Comoanv 

11 Aujas Cybersecurity Limited (Formerly known as Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary's Subsidiary of Holding Company 
Aujas Networks limited/Aujas Nelwo<ks Private 
Limited} 

12 CXIO T echnolooies Private Limited /Cloud X\ Fellow Subsidiarv's Subsidiarv's Subsidiarv of HoldinQ Comnanv 

13 Talentsnrint Private u mited Fellow Subsidiarv's Subsidiarv's Subsidiarv of Holdino Comoanv 

14 T alent$print fnc, Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary's Subsidiary's Subsidiary of Holding Company 

15 NSE Foundation Fellow Subsidiarv of Holdina Comoanv 

16 National Securities Oeoositorv Limited Associate Comoanv of Ultimate Holdino Comnanv 

17 NSDL Database Manaaement Limited Ultimate Holdlno Comoanv's Associate Company's Subsidiarv 

18 Protean eGov Technologies Limited (formerly Ultimate Holding company's Subsidiarys Assooate 
known as NSDL e~Govemance tnfra$t.ructure 

limited) 
19 BFSI Sector Skill Council of India Associate of lhe Ultimate Holding Company 

20 Power Exchanae India Limited Ultimate Hofdino comaanvs Subsidi,.-,:Vs Associate 

21 Markel Simplified India Limited Ulfimate Holdino comoanvs Subsidiarv's Associate 

22 Receivables Exchanoc Of India Limited Ultim~tc Holdina eomoan"s Subsidi~s Associate 

23 Indian Gas Exchanae Limited Ultimate Holdina Comoanv's Subsidiarv's Associate 

24 Cnnencis Information Services limited Fellow Subsidiarv's Subsidiarv's Subsidia"'Of Holdlno Comoanv 

25 Cacital Quants Solutions Private Limited Ultimate Holdina Comoanv's Subsidia--;;,s Subsidiarv's Associate 

26 India International Bullion Holding IFSC Ltd Ultimate Holding Company's Associate Company 

27 India fnternauonal Bullion Exchange IFSC Ltd Ullimate Holding Company's Associate Company's Subsidiary Company (w.e.f. 1 

28 NSE Administration & Superv1sion Limited (w.e.f. Fellow Subsidiary or Holding Company 

JanuaN 9, 2024) 

29 NSE Sustainabilliy & Rating & An.:,lytics Limited Follow Subsidiary's Subsidiary's Subsidiary of Holding Campany 

(w.e.f. March 30, 2024) 

30 Prof. Samir K Barua Kev Manaoerlal Personnel l uo to November 7, 2022\ 

31 Mr. Mukesh Aoan.val Kev Manaoerial Personnel 

32 Mr. Kaoll Seth Kev Manaoerial Personnel 

33 Mr. K Kumar Kev Manaoe,ial Personnel 

34 Mr. Kamalakar Karlapalem Kev Manaoerial Personnel 

35 Mr. Neerai Kulshrestha Kev Manaoerial Personnel /w,e .f. Julv 24, 2023) 

36 Mr. Vivek Sinqhvt Key Manaaerlal Personnel /w,e.f. Jutv 24, 2023) 

37 MT. Sushil Nimbulkar Kev Manaaerial Personnel 

38 Mr. Gaurana Thakkar Kev Manaoerial Personnel 

39 Ms. Hemal Davda Kev Manaoerial Personnel lw.e.f. October 16 2023\ 

40 Mr. Ariav Trivedi Kev Manaoerial Personnel lw.e.f. December 06,2023\ 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements ror the vear ended Maren 31, 2024 

l b \ Oebiht of transaction with n2ortl esarfl: a§ o o .. f 11-· 
Name of the Related Party Nature of Transactions For the year For the year For the year For the year 

ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In lakhs) (USO In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs) (USO In lakhs) 

NSE Clearing Limited Conlribu1ion lowards EQuily Share Capital 16.000.00 19 1.91 

Reimbur.semcnl of expenses for $laff or, dcputatiQn 32.80 0 .39 83.70 1.02 

paid / p""<li>le 
Outst.inding balance included 1n Other Mvanco 18.79 0 .23 (14 .04) (0 17) 

Receivable"INell 

f,fr, tb-.:.1 Stock £.xchang,e oF India Limitod A 4imbt.JrGc:imant o f axptinso.s for staff on d~putolion - 3.58 0.04 
(NSEIL) "•id / navable 

Reimbursement for oth&r evna.nses incun-ed 13.31 0 .16 I0.29 10.00 
Transrer of Assets 7.21 0.09 
OulStanding balance Included in Trad• Payables (Nel) i6.16) (0.07) 3.93 0.05 

NSE IFSC Umtled Reimbursemenl for other ex......,nses Incurred 24.46 0.29 17.96 0.22 
Clt".ari....,., & Setdctnent .-.come 1 070.17 12.92 10,07 ro.oo 
OulstandinQ balance included in Trade receivables 104.11 1.25 (15.27) (0.19) 

INSE rr Limrted Pavment ror software sumnrt Seivices I 307.57 I 3.69 I 424.84 5. 17 
Payment ror APillication Development Manogement I 322.92 1 3.87 I 604.26 7.35 

services 
Outstandln.n balmv,.e included in Trade. Pavables I 1159.66\1 11,91, I 1 6 17.49 n .s1 

NSE Indices Limited 
~

lmbursement of expenses ror staff on deputation 4.84 0.06 - • I 
id / navable 

IReimbursemenl ror other eYrv>nses incu-red 0.91 0.01 - I 
IOulslandinn balance lnc~dcd In Trade Pavables 12.89 10 .03 • I 

CogellCis lnfOffllatioo Sen,ices Linited 7.49 0.09 7,19 0.09 
2 .50 o.oa 2.49 O.OJ 

NSOL Dah)base Management limited 0.05 0.00 

National Securities Depository Limiled Pa ment for services 2 .17 0.03 
Outstandi balance incklded !n Trade Pa ab'°s 

IProl. Sam1r K Barua ls1tt1!?9 rees 9.75 I 0.12 I 
IMr. Kaeil Seth ls1n,!:?S roes 31.481 0.38 1 21 .00 I 0.26 1 

IM r. K Kumar lsini!:!Q tees & Reimbursement of Expenses 21.12 I 0.33 I 9.25 I 0.11 I 

!Mr. Kamalakilr Karla~alem lsitti~ fee:J & Reimbursement ofExecnsoa 25.51 I o.31 I 10.00 I 0.12 I 
Mr. Neeraj Kulshreslha Gross Remuneratr:m Including al>Wances. non.cash I 100.51 1.21 

- I perquisiles and con11ibution 10 Provident Fun<J and 
Superannuation Fund etc 

rr. Vivek S1nghvi Gros.s Rcmunef3ton including atowances, non-cash 39.33 0A7 -
oe,qulsiles and con~lbution lo Providenl Fund and 
Superannuation Fund etc, 

Mr. Sl/Shll Nlmbull(ar Gross Remuneration lncludlng aaowances, noo-cash I 34.99 0 ,<2 

perquisites and contJibulion lo Providenl Fund and 
Superannuation Fund etc, 

Mr, Gaurang Thakkar !Gross Remu,,cratlon locluding alowances. non-cash 38.10 0 .46 -, - I perquisites and con!Jibution lo Providonl Fund and 
Suporannuation Fund elc. 

Ms. Hcmal Davda Gross Remuneration including Glow.:i.n<.es, non-ca&h 11.1 5 0 .13 -
perquisites and contribution to Provident Fund and 
Supet3nnuation Fund etc, 

Mr. A,jov Trivedi Oro:)3 Rcmuncmtion includirig olowo,n-ces, non·C3C.h 
7.00 I 0 .08 -

perquisites and cootribution to Provident Fund and 
Superannuation Fu,ld etc. 

Note: Amount:; in tN~ di:oCIO$Od in r¢I.>1cd pc>rty tr.,n$OCtions .:iboYe oro oxc!ud[ng cvrrc,ncy nvetv.ihon ,mp~c;:t. 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to nnancla l statements for t he year ended March 31. 202◄ 

38 Capital and other commitments 

Estimeted a.-nount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account (net ot advaocos) al)d not provided 

Other Commitments on revenue account 

39 Contingent liabliity 

Contingam Uabililiss 

40 Lease : 
(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet 

ParticulcJr:s 

Rinht<Jf'-'se-as.sets 
8uildinos 
Total 

Particulars 

Lease liabilities 
Current 
Non Current 
Total 

(II) Amounts recognlsed In the Statement of Profit and Loss 

P,:1rticular-$ 

Ooorociation charao of Riaht...of-uso assets 
Buildinqs 
Total 

Particulars 

Interest e)(oenses 
Total 

As at 31.03.2024 

(Rs. In U khs) 
8.86 

210.70 
219.58 

As at 31.03.2024 

(Rs. In LakhS) 

As at 31.03.2024 

IRs. in Lakhsl 

81.45 
81.45 

As at 31 .03.2024 

(Rs. In Lakhs} 

4.85 
108.16 
113.01 

A,, at 31.03.2024 

(Rs. In Lakhsl 

7.93 
7.93 

As at 31.03.2024 

!Rs. in Lakhsl 
8.86 
8.86 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

{USO In Ukhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) {USO In Lakhs) 
0.1 1 1.71 0.02 

2.58 153.65 2.03 
2.69 155.36 2 .05 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 As at 31 .03.2023 

{USO In L.akhs) (RS. In L.akhS} (USD In LakhSI 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31,00-.2023 As at 31 .03.2023 

/USO in Lakhsl IRs. in Lakhsl /USO in Lakhsl 

0.96 88.21 1.07 
0.96 88.21 1.07 

As al 31.03.2024 As at 31.00.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

/USO In Lakhsl (Rs . In Lakhs} /USO In Lakhs} 

0.05 3.86 0 .05 
1.31 11 1.29 1.35 
1.36 115.16 1.4 1 

A,, at 31.03.2024 A!I at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

/USO in Lakhsl /Rs. In Lakhsl IUSO in Lakhsl 

0.10 7.93 0 .10 
0.10 7.93 0.10 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

(USO in Lakhsl (Rs. in Lakhsl (USO In Lakhsl 
0 .10 9.14 0 . 11 
0 .10 9.1.t 0 .11 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITEO 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31 , 2024 

41 Noto on Additional Regulatory Information required by Schedule Ill 

{i) WIifui Defaulter 
The Company has not been declared wifful defaulter by any bank or financial inslitutions or government or any government autnorlty. 

{ii) Relationship with struck off Companies 
The Company has no transactions with the companies struci< off unoer lhe Companies Aci, 2013 

(iii) Compliance with approved scheme{s) of arrangements 
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement Which has an accounting Impact on ament or prev,ous financial year 

( iv) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and Share premium 
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds o, share premium or any ether sources or kind of fu,ds by the Company to or in 

(v) Undisclosed Income 
There 1s no income surrende<ed or disclosed as income during the current or previous year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax.Act. 1961, thal has not 

(vi) Details of cypto currency of virtual currency 
The Company has not lraded or invested In crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

(vii) Valuation of PP&E, Intangible asset and investment property 
The Company has no1 revalued its property, plam and equipmenl (including r ighI-or-use assets) or intang,ble assets during the current or previous year. 

{viii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 
The<e are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered wiIh the Registrar or Companies beyond the stalutory period 

Core Investment Company (CIC) 
The Company has one substciiary company namely NSE Investments Lt<l Which ,s a deemed CIC and Is not required 10 be registered with RBI as per the d irections 
Compliance: with number of layers of companies 
The Company has complied with the number of layors proscribod undar the Companies Act. 2013 

(ix) Details of Benami Property held 
No p<0ceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holdmg benarru property undet the Benami Transactions (Prohlb1t1on) Act. 1988 (45 

(x) TiUe deeds of immovable properties not held In namo of the company 
There are no immovable properties held in name or the company 

(xi) Additional Regulatory Information - Ratios : 

Ratios Nvmcratot Denominator Current Vc:tt Ptevious Reason for chango in 

Year ratio for more than 25% 

Current Ratio (in limos) Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 359 0 67 Fixed Deposits shifted from 
Non Current to Current 
assets during FY24 I.e. 
malured / new Fixed 
ln onn<ilc •-•~_sJe~ •- •- - -

Debt- Enurtv Rat,o Total Debt Total Eoul1v Nol <>001icable 

Debt Service Coverage Ralio Earnings avaialbe for Debt Debi Service Not Apphcable 
Service 

Net Profi1 Ratio Net Profit/ (Lossl Total Revenue -50.41% NA NIL Revenue 1n PY 

Inventory Turnovor Ratio Cost ol Goods sold or Ave<age Inventory Not Applicable 

sales 
Trade Receivables tumover ratio (in Total Sates 

Avecage Aecoums Receivable 10.97 NA NIL Trade Receivable ,n 

times\ 
DV 

Trade pay~bles htmover ratio (in times) Cost or equiplments and Ave<age Trade Payable 3.77 6.37 
software developments + 
Other expenses 

Return on Capital Employed (in %} Net Profit / (Loss) Average Equity -9% -40% Due to generat,on or 
operat1n9 revenue & 
incroasod interest on 
lnvestmenl 

Retum on Investment (in%) Income genera1ed from Average Invested funds in treasury 3.1 2% 0.57% Due to generation or 
invested funds investments operating revenue 8 

1ncreas..ed intorost on 
investment 

Return on Equity ( in%) Net Profit/ (Loss) after Average Sharehc1ders Equity -866% -3999% Due 10 generation or 

Tax operatino revenue & 
mcceased intorest on 
investment 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to nnanclal statements for the year ended March 31 , 2024 

42 Financial Risk Management 
The Company's business aclivilres expose ii 10 a valiety of financial risks. namely liQuidlty risk. mar1<et risks and credit /isk. The Company's seni0< management has the 
overaU mspons.bility tor the estab1JShmen1 and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk management poliaes are established to 
identify and analyse the risks faced by tho Comptiny, to set appropnata risk limits and controls and to monitor' risks and adherence to limits R1sk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to renect changes in ina.kel conditions and the Company'.s activitie!ts 

Treasury department that provide$ as51.mmc.e that the Company's Mancial ri$k activities are governed by appropriate policies and pro:::edures and that financial risks a.re 
identified, measured and moriaged In accordance with tl'\8 Company's pclicies and risk objectives. The Treasury department activities are designed to: 
4 protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks 
- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters. while optimising rerums. and 
- protect the Company's financial investments. while maximising returns. 
Th& Treasury department is responsible 10 maximise the return on companies Internally generated tunas 

A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 
•Rs. In L.akhsl 

31.0l-2024 31-03-2023 
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amoftised Cost 

Financial A3sets 
Fixed Deposits with Bat'lkS 19,392.68 - 4.509.43 

Cash and Cash eqU1valents 1,683.39 . 80837 

Security aeposIts 9.23 - 9 10 

Total Financial As.sets - 21 ,085.31 5,326.90 

flnanclal LlabllJtles 
Trade payables - 299.50 . 814.66 

Deposits 2,063.59 1,015 46 

Other liabilities - 186.17 30839 

Total Financial Liabilities - 2,549.25 2,138.51 

IUSD In Lakhs' 

31-03-2024 31 -03-2023 
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 

Financial Assets 
Fixed OOpoMS with Banks 232.60 . - 54.85 

Cash ancl Cash equivalents - 20. 19 - . 9.83 

Securitv deooslts 0.11 . 0.11 

Total Flnandal Assels 252,QO - 64 79 

financial LlabillUes 
Trade payables 3.51 991 

Deposits . 24 75 1235 

Other lial>llitie• - . 2.23 3.75 

Total Financial Uabllitles . 30.50 . 26.01 

B. MANAGEMENT OF LIOUIDITV RISK 

Liquidity risk is tho risk tt,at 1he Company will face dif!icully in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabililies The Company's approach to manaQ"ng riquidity Is 
to onsuro that it wtll hove suffielen1 tu!"ldS to meet its liabilioos when due without Incurring unac::ceptatje losses. In doing this. management considers both normal and 
stressed conditions. 

The Company ma1nta11s a conse!\lative fUnding and Investment strategy, wItn a positive cash oa1ance dunng the year ended Maren J1 . 2024. 

The Company's treasury department regularty monIt0<s the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis lo meet operational needs 
Any short letm su(pfu-!- cash generated 0'ler and abo'le the an1ount rcquired ror working capital management and other oporation{II re,qoiremenls, is retained as cash 

equivalent~ {to the extent required), and excess is Invested in interest bearing term deposits. 

Particulars 

tu at Man:h 31, 2024 
Trade payables 
DeDOSits 
Margins From Members 
Other financial & current lf.:ibf11tio& 

Particulars 

113 al Man:h 31, 2024 
Trade oavables 
Dcoosijs 
Marqlns From Members 
Other financial & current liabilities 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2023 
Trade oavabfes 
Oeooslts 
Ma~r,s From Members 
Other financial & current liabilities 

Particulars 

AS at March J1 , 2023 
de payables 

sit-s 
ains From Membe<s 
1 nnanoal & curreni 1iaonmes 

Carrying amount Payable on demand Less than 12 Month 

299.50 299.50 
2,063.59 2 ,063.59 

182.70 182.70 
284.23 189.62 9461 

Carrying amount Payable on demand Less than 12 Month 

3.51 3.51 
24.75 24.75 
219 2.19 
341 2 .27 1.13 

Canying amount Payable on demand Less than 12 Month 

81466 814.66 
1,015.46 1.01546 

308.22 308.22 
142.23 34 .43 107.81 

Carrying amount P• yabfe on demand Less than 12 Month 

991 
1235 
375 
1.7J 

12.35 
3.75 
0.42 

9.91 

1.31 

IRS in lakhsl 
More than 12 

months 

IUSD In lakhsl 
Mon, than 12 

months 

I Rs in lakhs\ 
More than 12 

months 

USO in takhs 
Mote than 12 

month$ 



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 
Notes to financial :statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

C. MANAGEMENT OF MARKET 
RISK 
The Company's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments· 
• price risk; 
• foreign ex·change risk and 
• interest rate risk 
The above risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective or the Company's management of market 
risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. 

0 . CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital. 
Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet) - retained profit / (Loss). share capital. 

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of 
the Company is base<! on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company 
considers the amount or capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares. 

The Company aims to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable 
and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to mainlain investor. creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of 
its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial fleXJbdity for potential future 
borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile or the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its 
capital structure. The Company is not subject to financial covenants in any of its significant financing agreements. 

International Financial Services Centres Authority has issued International Financial Services Centres Authority (Market Infrastructure lnstitulions) Regulations, 
2021 on April 12, 2021. Regulation 14 of International Financial Services Centres Authority (Market Infrastructure Institutions) Regulations, 2021 requires the 
company to have net worth of at least USD 3 million at all times. Post enactment or the said regulation the Company is required to maintain net worth of USD 3 
million and the company is in compliance of the same. 

43 The Company does not have any long-term contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses The Company does not have any derivative contracts. 

44 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current penod presentation. 
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